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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report dreddudited financial statements of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad (“thenB3a for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Bank is principally engaged in the provisiorbahking and other related financial services.

RESULTS

RM'000
Profit before taxation 57,075
Tax expense (6,752)
Profit for the year 50,323

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves andigiome during the financial year under review
except as disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the financial year and the Dextdo not recommend any dividend to be paid
for the financial year.

DIRECTORS OF THE BANK
Directors who held office during the financial yesntil the date of this report are:-

Mr Chang Zhenwang

Mr Wang Qiang

Mr Chin Chee Kong

Mr Ng Lip Yong (Appointed on 7 February 2019)

Ms Sum Leng Kuang (Appointed on 15 April 2019)

YBhg Dato’ Leong Khee Seong (Retired on 2 June 2019
Mr Ong Ah Tin @ Ong Chee Kwee (Retired on 2 Junt0

In accordance with Clause 79 of the Bank’s Constitution, MiinCChee Kong retires at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offeimself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

None of the Directors holding office at 31 December 2019 hasiaterest in the ordinary shares and options
over shares of the Bank and of its related corpmratduring the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Directorhef Bank has received nor become entitled to
receive any benefit (other than a benefit included in theegmte amount of remuneration received or due and
receivable by Directors as shown in the financial statementhe fixed salary of a full time employee of the
Bank as shown in Note 31(c) to the financial statements) bgar of a contract made by the Bank with the

Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, ortlvia company in which the Director has a
substantial financial interest.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

There were no changes in the issued and paid-up capital @ddhk during the financial year. There were no
debentures issued during the financial year.

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES

No options were granted to any person to take ugsuad shares of the Bank during the financial.year

BANK RATINGS

The Bank has not been rated by any external agencie

HOLDING CORPORATION

The Directors regard Industrial and Commercial Bank of @hlimited (“Parent Bank”), a corporation
incorporated in China, as the holding corporatibthe Bank.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE COSTS

During the financial year, the Bank has put in place a Dinectand Officers Insurance scheme with a
maximum sum insured and premium paid of RM10.00 million andl2R.27 thousand respectively for
Directors and Officers of the Bank.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Bank registered profit before tax (“PBT”) of RM57.08 lwih for the financial year 2019, representing a
decrease of RM38.57 million or 40.3% as compared with thevipus financial year. Net interest income

which contributed 79.9% to the Bank’s total operating ineomtecreased RM5.57 million or 4.5% to

RM117.96 million in 2019 when compared to the financial y884.8 as a result of lower interest margin

earned. Net trading income which contributed 12.6% of thekBatotal operating income decreased by 42.9%
or RM13.96 million to RM18.60 million in 2019 caused by loweslume of foreign exchange transactions.
Net fee income which constituted 7.4% of the Bank’s totalrapfieg income decreased RM14.77 million or

57.6% to RM10.89 million in 2019.

The Bank’s other operating expenses decreased by RM7.18muk 9.6% to RM73.14 million largely due to
lower personnel costs incurred. During the year, allowanceémpairment on loans, advances and financing
increased by RM11.53 million when compared with the finahgiear 2018 resulted from a change in the
credit grading of certain borrowers. The Bank recorded tgxease of RM6.75 million with lower profit
earned during the year and taking into accountaiver tax rate for its Labuan operation.

Overall, the Bank’s total assets stood at RM5.07 billion 883 December 2019, increased by RM239.32
million or 5.0% when compared to 31 December 2018. The irsear&aas contributed by higher cash and short-
term funds by RM160.18 million and higher deposits and piamets with banks and other financial
institutions by RM159.10 million. However, the Bank’s gsokans, advances and financing registered a
negative growth of RM79.64 million or 2.6% to RM2.96 billi@s compared to the RM3.04 billion recorded as
at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank’s total liabilities inceshdy RM179.58 million or 4.8% and stood at
RM3.90 billion. The higher balance was mainly contributeg drowth in deposits from customers by
RM365.79 million or 14.6% when compared to previous year. €the other hand, deposits and placements
of banks and other financial institutions decrease&M196.33 million or 17.4% to RM933.71 million.

Despite the many challenges in the financial year 2020, taakBvill continue to strengthen its core business
by growing both loans and deposits, as well as source oppitytio grow its fee income and trading income
with a view to sustaining business and enhancin§jtpbility for the foreseeable future.
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OUTLOOK FOR 2020

The World Bank and International Monetary Fund in Januar@®Qaking cognizance of the then prevailing
development of global trade and investment environmermgctsted the global Gross Domestic Product
(“GDP”) would grow by 2.5% and 3.3% respectively in 2020. Téeolving development of the novel
coronavirus (which was named COVID-19 on 11 February 202@0reak since January 2020 has, however,
triggered economists and strategists to repeatedly loegr global growth forecasts, the lower end of which
could go down to as low as -2.0%. Given this scenario, coatdth actions by policy makers of major
economies would be integral in revitalising thebglbGDP into the positive momentum.

Malaysian GDP grew 4.3% for the full year of 2019 (2017: 5.98d 2018: 4.7%), supported by higher private
sector spending. However, the growth was affected by théndein net export. Considering the impacts of
COVID-19 outbreak under a scenario where the large-scateption of economic activities would extend for
most of the year 2020, the World Bank had in Mdostered Malaysia's GDP forecast to -0.1%.

While the economy stimulus package announced by the MalaySovernment in March 2020 could help in
mitigating the immediate impacts of the outbreak, World Baipined that more targeted fiscal policy
interventions would be needed to help mitigate the impath®forolonged outbreak on vulnerable households
and businesses. Moreover, the plunge in commodity pricgscrude oil prices) would put additional strain on
Malaysia’s fiscal space and in turn may increasebilrden on monetary policy as a key policy tool.

On another note, while the banking system in Malaysia reethisound as evidenced by its healthy asset
quality and strong capitalisation, the downside risks bez@mminent amid the chain impacts of COVID-19
outbreak to the domestic economy and abroad, which wouichately add on the credit costs of the banks.
Stiffer competitions for acquiring customer deposits anliy lending deals as well as the possibility of
further cut in Overnight Policy Rate (“OPR”) (in addition ©PR cuts in January and March 2020) are
expected to put on additional pressure to the banking systeet interest margin. Therefore, banks’ earnings
are expected to soften this year.

While being cautious in dealing with the downside risks thraiadly affect the banking industry, the Bank will
remain prudent and focused on its long term strategic dbgiwith the aim of playing a greater role in
providing banking service solutions that suit clients’ Wy needs and promoting cross border trade and
investment activities by capitalising on the ICBC Group&ablished business network and service channels
globally. Notwithstanding the challenging operating @amment coupled with the chain effects of the COVID-
19 outbreak, the Bank will continue to uphold its commitmengrow the business and manage the financial
position in a sustainable manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

ICBC Malaysia aspires to uphold the highest standard of aratp governance as it believes that good
governance is vital to the long-term success and sustdityabf the Bank’s business with the ultimate
objective of safeguarding the interests of all stakehalderd enhancing shareholder’s value. To this end, the
Board of Directors (“the Board”) is committed to provideedfive leadership in ensuring that responsible and
sustainable business practices as well as the highestdéwalrporate integrity are promoted throughout the
Bank. The Bank’s corporate governance practices are gligdide principles and standards as set out in Bank
Negara Malaysia’s Policy Document on Corporate GoverngfgeM CG Policy”) and Malaysian Code on
Corporate Governance.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(a) Board Composition

The Board of the Bank is currently represented by five (5) Mers, comprising the Non-Independent
Non-Executive Chairman, the Managing Director and threeif@ependent Non-Executive Directors
(“INEDs"). The Board is constituted of individuals of higtalder with relevant experience and skills,
which allows a breadth of perspective and is viewed as optiased on the complexity, size and scope of
the business operations of the Bank. A brief peafil each member of the Board is presented below:-

(i) Mr Chang Zhenwang
Chairman/Non-I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 28 October 2016)
58 years old/Chinese

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Master of Business Administration, Fudan University andivérsity of Hong Kong (International),
China

Skills and Experience

Mr Chang Zhenwang carries with him more than 30 years of man&kperience. He started his career
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBCGn 1986 and held various positions
since then ranging from Officer and Deputy Director of Adisiration Department, ICBC Anhui
Branch (December 1986 - November 1997), Deputy Presided€C&C Bengbu Branch (December
1997 - March 1998), Deputy President (Officer-in-Charge)IGBC Suxian Branch (April 1998 -
April 1999) and subsequently as President of the branchréefiking up the position as Chief
Executive Officer of Banking Office in ICBC Anhui Branch froJuly 1999 until February 2002. Mr
Chang Zhenwang was appointed Deputy President of ICBC ABhnanch in March 2002 before
assuming the position as President of the branépiil 2011 until his retirement in March 2015.

Other Directorships

* |CBC (Almaty) Joint Stock Company (Chairman)
* |CBC Financial Leasing Co. Ltd (Chairman)

* |CBC International Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Board Composition (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Mr Wang Qiang
Managing Director/Chief Executive Officer (appointed to the Board on 22 November 2017)
50 years old/Chinese

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Master of Business Administration (Internationdniversity of Hong Kong
* Bachelor of Investment Management, Central Ursitgrof Finance and Economics, China

Skills and Experience

Mr Wang Qiang has more than 25 years of experience in bankihggsiry, involving in among others,
corporate banking, equipment leasing, credit assessmg&ntnanagement, mergers and acquisitions.
He has held various senior positions within ICBC Group and feamerly the Executive Director of
ICBC Turkey Bank A.S. before assuming the position as Marga@iirector/Chief Executive Officer
(“MD/CEQ") of ICBC Malaysia.

Other Directorships
Nil

Mr Chin Chee Kong

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 10 August 2017)
Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Board Risk Management Committee

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

63 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Member of the Malaysian Institute of Accounta(fdA)
* Member of the Malaysian Institute of Certifiedi®tic Accountants (MICPA)

Skills and Experience

Mr Chin Chee Kong is a Chartered Accountant and a Certifidali®éccountant. He has 35 years of
experience in providing audit, taxation and corporate smyi services (including corporate finance
and corporate restructuring) to clients in a wide range dtigtries. He started his career as an audit
junior with Peat Marwick Mitchell & Co (now known as KPMG PLT) 1979 and had held various
positions before being promoted as a Partner of KPMG Madaiysil990. He was later appointed as
Partner-in-Charge of KPMG East Malaysia in 2007 and a membtre Executive Council of KPMG
Malaysia in 2011 until his retirement from the Fiom 1 January 2014.

Other Directorships

* Naim Holdings Berhad

* Perdana Petroleum Berhad

* Kebajikan Dayang Fatimah Berhad
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(a) Board Composition (continued)

(iv) Mr Ng Lip Yong

v)

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 7 February 2019)
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Board Risk Management Committee

70 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Master of Science in Microwave and Communicati&@ngjineering, University of Leeds, UK
* Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) in Electronic Emggring, University of Sheffield, UK

Skills and Experience

Mr Ng Lip Yong has broad experiences through various pasitiadvisory roles held in the
government agencies and corporate sector. He held vammimital and management positions in
several established companies, which included as EngimieStandard Telephone & Cables Ltd,
England and Telecommunications Authority of SingaporesitRnt Manager of GTE International
Incorporated, USA (Malaysia Representative Office), Mang Director of Hai-O Marketing Sdn
Bhd and Hai-O Energy Sdn Bhd and Business Advisttiap Teck Venture Berhad.

Mr Ng Lip Yong has previously served the Malaysian Governt@arthe Deputy Minister of Ministry
of International Trade & Industry Malaysia (MITI), Chairmaof Malaysian Logistic Council,
Parliamentary Secretary of Ministry of Plantation Indiestr& Commodities Malaysia and Member of
Parliament for Batu Constituency, Kuala Lumpur. He is cuoisethe Honourary Advisor of Malaysia-
China Chamber of Commerce.

Other Directorships
Nil

Ms Sum Leng Kuang

I ndependent Non-Executive Director (appointed to the Board on 15 April 2019)
Chairman of Board Risk Management Committee

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

66 years old/Malaysian

Academic/Professional Qualification
* Bachelor of Commerce in Finance, University oih@abury, New Zealand
* Certified Financial Planner

Skills and Experience

Ms Sum Leng Kuang has over 30 years of experience in fund imesd and management with vast
exposures in credit and market risk management. She hasddolally with Great Eastern Group

for 31 years from 1982 to 2013. As the Head of Fixed Income dtment in Great Eastern Life

Assurance (Malaysia) Berhad, Ms Sum Leng Kuang was redpen$or the management of

approximately RM40.0 billion fixed income funds as well agdit risk management of the credit
investment portfolios. In 2013, Ms Sum Leng Kuang joined gldveong Asset Management Berhad
(“HLAM”) as Chief Investment Officer cum Acting Chief Exetive Officer to drive and oversee the
fund management business of HLAM. Ms Sum Leng Kuang was apguiby Credit Guarantee

Corporation Malaysia Berhad as Investment Advistofving her retirement from HLAM in 2014.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 8

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Board Composition (continued)
(v) Ms Sum Leng Kuang(continued)

Other Directorships
* AmFunds Management Berhad
* Amlislamic Funds Management Sdn Bhd

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors have amyettolding in the Bank nor they have any
conflict of interest or personal interest in angib@ss arrangement involving the Bank.

Tenure and Independence

The Board recognises the importance of having a strong eleafeéndependence on the Board so as to
provide effective check and balance in the functioning ef Board to safeguard the interests of the Bank
and all stakeholders. The current Independent DirectotseoBank account for 60% of the Board, which
is in compliance with the requirement of having a majoritymdependent Directors on the Board at all
times as set out in BNM CG Policy.

The Board through the Nomination and Remuneration Comenift&lRC”) assesses the Independent
Directors’ independence annually. In the annual assedsofiehe Independent Directors of the Bank in
respect of financial year 2019, the Board was satisfied¢hah of the Independent Directors of the Bank
continues to be independent and free from any business er mtationship, which could interfere with
the exercise of independent judgement or the ability to acthe best interest of the Bank. All the
Independent Directors also continue to fulfill the critend definition of ‘Independent Director’ as
stipulated in BNM CG Policy.

The Bank has adopted a nine (9) years policy for tenure ofdeddent Directors. Upon completion of the

nine (9) years, an Independent Director may continue toesenvthe Board if the Board has approved

his/her re-appointment with recommendation from the NRi@rdhe assessment that the services of the
Independent Director are still required by the Bank and thatDirector concerned remains free of any

business or other relationship with the Bank which couldosably be perceived to materially interfere

with his/her exercise of unfettered and independent judgemAny re-appointment of Independent

Director of this nature is subject to the appraaBNM.

The past financial year saw the Board bidding farewell to {(&p Independent Directors, YBhg Dato’
Leong Khee Seong and Mr Ong Ah Tin, who have retired from tharBmn 2 June 2019 after having
served the Bank for nine (9) years. The departure of YBhg Datong Khee Seong and Mr Ong Ah Tin
paved the way for the appointment of Mr Ng Lip Yong and Ms Sumd &uang as new Independent
Directors of the Bank.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

()

(d)

Board Responsibilities

In discharging its roles and responsibilities, the Boardjugded by its Board Charter which outlines,
among others, the respective roles, responsibilities artkdoaties of the Board (both individually and

collectively), the Chairman and MD/CEOQO of the Bank. This @baserves as the basis of the principles
that govern the Board’s conduct and its relatiomstith the stakeholders of the Bank.

The Board Charter will be reviewed as and when deemed apptefo ensure that it is up to date and
consistent with the Board’s objectives and responsiediis well as relevant regulatory requirements. The
Board Charter is available on the Bank’s corporate websitew.icocmy.com) for reference. Other than
the Board Charter, the Board has also established a Termeferddce (“TOR”) which serves as a
guidance to the Board in discharging its dutiescf¥ely.

The business and affairs of the Bank are managed under #hetidir and oversight of the Board, with the
goal of enhancing the long-term value of shareholder, sefeting the interests of all stakeholders and
contributing to the success of the Bank. The Board is resptnso review and approve the Bank’s
business strategies and policies while at the same timeughrthe established Board Committees, to
provide effective oversight of the Bank’'s performancek rsssessment and controls over business
operations, and compliance with regulatory requéaets.

The day-to-day business operation of the Bank is managetebiD/CEO who is assisted by the Senior
Management team. The MD/CEO and his Senior Management temmacaountable to the Board for the
performance of the Bank. Apart from that, the Board has ésteddl Board Committees which operate
within clearly defined TORs primarily to supporetkexecution of its duties and responsibilities.

The Board acknowledges the importance of a clear divisioeghonsibilities between the Chairman and
MD/CEO. The roles of Chairman and MD/CEOQO are therefore @getcby separate individuals to ensure
optimal balance, resulting in increased accountabilityd @mhanced decision-making. The roles and
responsibilities of the Chairman and MD/CEO are alsecified clearly in the Board Charter of the IBan

The Bank has also adopted a Code of Ethics for Directors thigt gut the standards required to be
observed by the Directors in order to promote and maintarhighest ethical standards at all times. The
Code of Ethics for Directors will be revised as and when dekmppropriate so as to maintain its
relevancy in line with the business operationshefBank and the relevant regulatory requirements.

Meetings and Supply of Information to the Board

The Board meets on a scheduled basis at least five (5) timesraty review the business progress and
financial performance of the Bank, approves corporatdesifas, business plan, annual budget and other
matters/proposals that require the Board’s directiongitae. Additional meetings, when required, will be
held to deliberate on any urgent proposals or matters. Boaetings are scheduled in advance before the
commencement of each financial year so as to enable thetBiseto plan ahead and accommodate the
meetings into their schedule.

At each Board meeting, the Board is, among others, inforni@tcisions, salient issues and views raised
at the Board Committee meetings by the Chairmen of the réspgcommittees. Minutes of the respective

Board Committee meetings are also tabled for the Boardindtion. All Board meetings’ proceedings

are properly recorded and the minutes thereofadned at the next meeting for confirmation of theaRi.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
(d) Meetings and Supply of Information to the Board(continued)

The Chairman of the Bank manages the affairs of the Board thithobjective to ensure smooth and

effective functioning of the Board in performing its dutiasd responsibilities. The Chairman ensures all
Members of the Board have been given opportunities to exptiesir views, opinions and ideas to

facilitate a proper decision making process byBbard.

To facilitate a meaningful deliberation, the proceedinfjthe Board and Board Committees’ meetings are
conducted in accordance with a structured agenda. The adegdther with the management reports and
proposal papers are furnished to the Directors between 50talays before the Board and Board
Committees meetings. There is always an avenue for NontHxecDirectors to seek clarifications or
obtain details concerning the proposal papers/reporta filte Management or the Company Secretary.
The Non-Executive Directors may seek independent prafeasadvice, at the Bank’s expense, should the
need arise in discharging their duties. Senior Managemereads of Department are invited to attend the
Board meetings to report to the Board on matters relatindnédr respective areas of responsibility and
also to brief and provide details to the Directors on recomuia¢ions or reports submitted to the Board. In
any case and depending on the urgency of the matters, dea@sithe Board may be taken by way of
Directors’ Circular Resolution in accordance witle Constitution of the Bank.

The Directors have a duty to declare immediately to the Baaialild they be interested in any proposal
being considered or transaction to be entered into directlgdirectly by the Bank. An interested director
is required to abstain from deliberations and degisf the Board.

All Directors holding office during the financial year erti81 December 2019 have allocated sufficient
time to the Bank to discharge their duties and responséslieffectively and complied with the required
minimum Board meetings attendance of 75% under BNM CG Paliy internal policy of the Bank, as
reflected below:-

Directors Attendance
Chang Zhenwang (Chairman) 5/5
NINED
Wang Qiang 5/5
MD/CEO
Chin Chee Kong 5/5
INED
Ng Lip Yong® 5/5
INED
Sum Leng Kuan§’ 3/3
INED
Dato’ Leong Khee Seortd 3/3
INED
Ong Ah Tin® 3/3
INED
Note:-

(1) Appointed to the Board on 7 February 2019
(2) Appointed to the Board on 15 April 2019
(3) Retired from the Board on 2 June 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
(e) Training and Development of Directors

The Board recognises the importance of ensuring the Direcoe continuously being developed to
acquire or enhance the requisite knowledge ant$ s&idischarge their duties effectively.

To this end, the Bank has put in place a Directors’ InductiocmgPamme for newly appointed Directors to
assist them to familiarise with the industry as well as thsiless operations of the Bank. Mr Ng Lip Yong
and Ms Sum Leng Kuang who were appointed as Independenttbiseaf the Bank on 7 February 2019
and 15 April 2019, respectively had attended the InductioogRmme organised by the Bank, which
covered an overview of the corporate strategies, businesstons, financial performance, business risks
and risk management strategies of the Bank asasdhe regulatory requirements of banking industry.

The Directors are also provided with opportunities to pgstte in training programmes and seminars
organised internally (including those organised by ICBGu@x) or externally by relevant regulatory
authorities and professional bodies to broaden their kadg¢ and keep abreast with the relevant changes
in law, regulations and the business environment.

The training programmes, conferences and forums attengetieb Directors of the Bank during the
financial year 2019, were as follows:-

Director Training Attended
Chang Zzhenwang [+ In-house: Risk Management in Shipping Industry (orgartiseleCBC Group)
= In-house: Anti-Bribery and Corruption
= In-house: Anti-Money Laundering/Counter Financing ofrdesm (AML/CFT)
= In-house: Briefing on BNM Policy Document on Credit Risk

Wang Qiang = In-house: Seminar on Macroeconomic Condition in China dnidaEMalaysia Bilateral
= In-house: Anti-Bribery and Corruption

* In-house: AML/CFT

= In-house: Briefing on BNM Policy Document on Credit Risk

= In-house: China/HK Capital Market Performance and Oppitits Conference

* In-house: Trade-Based Money Laundering

= BNM Financial Industry Conference: Shifting Tides - Futofr&inance

Chin Chee Kong = In-house: Seminar on Macroeconomic Condition in China dnidaEMalaysia Bilateral
= In-house: Anti-Bribery and Corruption

* In-house: AML/CFT

= In-house: Briefing on BNM Policy Document on Credit Risk

= BNM Financial Industry Conference: Shifting Tides - Futofr&inance

= Corporate Liability Provision on Corruption under MalaysAnti-Corruption Commission
Act 2009 (“MACC Act”)

= Malaysian Financial Reporting Standard (MFRS) Update8/2020 Seminar
= Tax and Business Seminar

= Seminar on Fraud Risk Management
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(e) Training and Development of Directors(continued)

Director Training Attended
Ng Lip Yong = In-house: Seminar on Macroeconomic Condition in China dnidaEMalaysia Bilateral
= In-house: Anti-Bribery and Corruption
= In-house: AML/CFT
= In-house: Briefing on BNM Policy Document on Credit Risk
= In-house: Directors’ Induction Programme
= In-house: China/HK Capital Market Performance and Oppiti¢g Conference
= FIDE Core Programme (Module A & B)

Sum Leng Kuang | In-house: Seminar on Macroeconomic Condition in China dndacMalaysia Bilateral
= In-house: Anti-Bribery and Corruption

* In-house: AML/CFT

= In-house: Briefing on BNM Policy Document on Credit Risk

= In-house: Directors’ Induction Programme

= In-house: China/HK Capital Market Performance and Oppiti¢g Conference
= Section 17A of MACC Act

= Post National Budget 2020 Forum

= Leadership in a Disruptive World: The Changing Role of B®ard

= Khazanah Megatrend 2019

= Moody’s Credit Trend

= Artificial Intelligence and Its Role in Financial Instits

= Nomura Conference on Financial Market

= Digital Assets: Global Trends, Legal Requirements and Quopities for Financial
Institutions

= FIDE Forum: Reading the Signs: The Next Financial CrisisRotdntial Impact on Asia
= DBS Pulse of Asia Conference

(f) Appointment and Re-election of Directors
= Appointment/Re-Appointment of Directors

The Bank has in place a Governance Policy on Nomination armgbiyoment of Directors and Succession
Planning (“Governance Policy”), which sets out a clear andgparent nomination process of Directors as
well as the minimum criteria and qualification required ofandidate for appointment as Director of the
Bank. The primary goal of the nomination process is to noteiriadividuals, who, as a group, offer a
range of specialised knowledge, skills and expertise taathest contribute to enhancing the Board, and
therefore organisational success under existing andduincumstances. The said policy is also aimed at
setting out a systematic approach to orderly identify ateicts@ew Directors in the event of an opening on
the Board of the Bank, whether such opening exists by rea$@n manned retirement, an unplanned
departure, expansion of the size of the Board or otherwisasgo ensure proper succession planning and
smooth functioning of the Board.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Services Act32a&id BNM CG Policy, the appointment of a
new Director is subject to the prior approval of BNM and widl for a specified term of appointment. The
NRC is responsible to undertake a thorough assessment gmahesed candidate by taking into account
the criteria/requirements as stated in the Governance\Rdiit and Proper Policy of the Bank and/or
imposed by relevant regulatory authorities before recomtimg an appointment proposal to the Board for
approval.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(f)

(9)

Appointment and Re-election of Directorgcontinued)

In the case of Independent Directors, prior to recommentinthe Board for consideration, interview

session(s) will also be held by NRC to assess the suitabilitie candidate to be appointed to the Board,
during which the NRC will take into account, inter alia, theategic and effective fit of the candidates for

the Board, the overall desired composition and the mix ofeetige and experience of the Board as a
whole.

For the re-appointment of existing Directors, the NRC refer the results of the individual assessments
conducted via the Board Performance Evaluation exercisgdition to their normal interactions with the
Directors. The NRC also assesses the Directors based amp#rérmance and contribution to the Board
and Board Committees, their independence of view in respéatlecision making, where deemed
appropriate and time commitment. Once approved by the Bélaedapplication for the re-appointment of
Directors is submitted to BNM for its consideration

= Re-election of Directors

The Constitution of the Bank states that newly appointedg®ars shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting (“AGM”) and then be eligible for feetion. Further, one-third of the Directors
for the time being or the number nearest to one-third shallerdy rotation from office and shall be
eligible for re-election at each AGM.

Board Performance Evaluation

The Bank conducts an annual Board Performance EvaluatiBRE") exercise with the objective of
assessing the performance of the Board as a whole, Board @mmsnand individual Directors. The
results of the BPE form part of the basis for eatibn by the NRC for the re-appointment of Direstor

The BPE is a questionnaire based self-assessment exetoise Wirectors assess the performance of the
Board, Board Committees and individual Directors. The sssent results will be tabled at the NRC and
the Board for review to enable the Board to identify and putplace actions to address areas for
improvement. All Directors will have access to the final lkenagion report for information and
improvement.

The Bank has rolled-out the assessment questionnaire rfandial year 2019 to its Directors and the
assessment results thereof will be compiled for presemato NRC and the Board for review
subsequently.
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BOARD COMMITEES

The Board has established Audit Committee (“AC”), BoardkRidanagement Committee (“BRMC”) and
NRC to complement the Board in the execution of its roles agponsibilities. Each Board Committee
operates within its TOR, which clearly define its functicarsd authorities. The aforesaid TORs are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that they remain ref\end are up-to-date.

(&) Audit Committee

The AC currently comprises entirely INEDs. The AC suppohis Board with matters relating to financial
reporting, external audit, internal audit, internal cohfprocesses and related party transactions. It also
works closely with BRMC in connection with assessing theeetveness of the risk management and
internal control framework. The details of AC’s duties aegdponsibilities are set out in its TOR which is
published on the Bank’s corporate website.

During the financial year ended 2019, five (5) AC meetinggenieeld and the attendances of the AC
members were as follows:-

Member Attendance
Chin Chee Kong (Chairmar‘ﬁ 5/5
INED
i @
Ng Lip Yong 2/2
INED
)
Sum Leng Kuané2 2/2
INED
Dato’ Leong Khee Seor@ 3/3
INED
in(@)
Ong Ah Tin 3/3
INED
Note:-

(1) Appointed as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(2) Appointed as Member on 2 June 2019
(3) Ceased as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(4) Ceased as Member on 2 June 2019
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BOARD COMMITEES (continued)

(b) Board Risk Management Committee

15

The BRMC currently comprises entirely INEDs. The BRMC israsted by the Board to undertake the
responsibilities to provide oversight and governance sifsifor the Bank. The Committee oversees the
risk framework, reviews the risk management activities poticies formulated by the Management for
approval by the Board. It assists the Board to ensure thatitkeexposures and outcomes affecting the
Bank are effectively managed and addressed. The detate @RMC's duties and responsibilities are set

out in its TOR which is available on the Bank's morate website.

For the financial year ended 2019, six (6) BRMC meetings wezlgl. Five (5) were regular meetings
scheduled before the start of financial year while one (1§ \wd-hoc meeting convened to consider

exigency matters. The details of attendance oBRBIC members are recorded as follows:-

Member Attendance

Sum Leng Kuang (ChairmaFB 3/3
INED

Chin Chee Kong

INED 6/6

i @
Ng Lip Yong 3/3
INED
in(3)

Ong Ah Tin 3/3
INED

Dato’ Leong Khee Seor{@ 3/3
INED

Note:-

(1) Appointed as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(2) Appointed as Member on 2 June 2019
(3) Ceased as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(4) Ceased as Member on 2 June 2019
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BOARD COMMITEES (continued)
(c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The NRC currently comprises entirely INEDs. The NRC is rewsilole to support the Board in ensuring
formal, transparent and consistent procedures are esiebliby the Bank to govern the board
composition, performance assessment and developmeanhdiproper assessment as well as appointment
and removal of Directors, Board Committee Members, Seniandgement and senior officers of control
functions. It also provides oversight and direction on homasource and remuneration policies of the
Bank. The details of NRC's duties and responsibilities ateaoat in its TOR which is available on the
Bank’s corporate website.

During the financial year ended 2019, five (5) NRC meetingsenheld and the attendances of the NRC
members were as follows:-

Member Attendance
Ng Lip Yong (Chairman$” 2/
INED
Chin Chee Kong
INED o/5
Sum Leng Kuan§’
INED 212
Dato’ Leong Khee Seor@ 3/3
INED
Ong Ah Tin®
INED 313
Note:-

(1) Appointed as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(2) Appointed as Member on 2 June 2019
(3) Ceased as Chairman on 2 June 2019
(4) Ceased as Member on 2 June 2019

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Board affirms its commitment on its overall respondipibnd oversight of the Bank’s system of risk
management and internal control. In acknowledging thaingga sound risk management and internal control
system is imperative, the Board has established a govegretnecture that ensures effective oversight of risk
and internal controls in the Bank at all levels. To this et@, Board is assisted by the BRMC and AC, which
have been delegated with primary oversight responséslibn the Bank’s risk management and internal
control system.

The Bank has implemented an ongoing process to identifyluaieg monitor, manage and respond to
significant risks faced by the Bank in its achievement oflthisiness goals and objectives amidst the dynamic
and challenging business environment and increasingatmylscruitinisation. This ongoing process has been
in place throughout the financial year ended 31 Decembe® 201 has continued up to date as of the date of
this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)

The key processes that the Board has established to proffidetiee governance and oversight of risk
management and internal control of the Bank inglasieong others, the following:-

() Risk Governance and Oversight

The risk governance model provides a formalised, transpaard effective governance structure that
promotes active involvement from the Board and Senior Mamamt in the risk management process to
ensure an integrated view of risk across the Bank. The gamemmodel aims to place accountability and
ownership whilst facilitating an appropriate level of ipé@dence and segregation of duties between the
three Lines of Defense. The management of risk broadly tpkee at different hierarchical levels and is
embedded within the Bank’s three Lines of Defense:-

Lines of Defense Functions Key Responsibilities

1st Line Business, Operation and Sup®esponsible for identifying and managing risks inherent
Units which own and manage daiyr the products, activities, processes and systemg for
to-day risks inherent in busingsgich it is accountable.
and activities.

2nd Line Risk Management, CompliapBesponsible for developing and implementing the |risk
and other middle / back offiggmanagement framework and independent coptrol
departments functions, which cover the identified risks that the Ba
exposed to.
3rd Line Internal Audit Responsible for providing indepent and reasonahle

assurance over the comprehensiveness and robustness of
the internal control system, risk management practices
and governance framework.

(b) Risk Management

The Chief Risk Officer (“CRO”) and risk management functiare responsible for establishing and
facilitating the implementation of the Bank’s risk managamframework as well as performing periodic
assessment of the consistency of the Bank’s risk profilé wik appetite statement as approved by the
Board. The risk management function is guided by the Barikls management framework based on the
guidelines issued by relevant regulatory authorities.eRaBank and the best practices in governing
banking business.

Based on the risk management framework, the risk managemnecdsses have been defined to effectively
manage the identification, assessment, monitoring anttabng of material risks. The outcomes of the
risk management processes have been adequately reporiedigaly for supervision and decision
making purposes at Management and Board level.

The details pertaining to the Bank'’s financial risk managetrframework are set out on pages 83 to 104
of these financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)

()

(d)

Compliance

The Chief Compliance Officer (“CCQ") is the central pointaithority for the Bank’s compliance matters
and is responsible for providing an institution-wide viewthe management of compliance risk. The CCO
is supported by Legal and Compliance Department (“LCD”) ehhiundertakes the function of
identification, assessment, monitoring and reportingarshpliance risk. In carrying out the activities, LCD
has adopted risk based approach in managemeninfliemce risk.

The Bank has appointed compliance liaison officers at depart and branch level who act as the liaison
in attending to compliance matters, promoting general d@ampe awareness among employees of the
respective departments/branches and highlightiggcampliance gaps and issues.

The Bank is committed to the compliance with the Anti-Moneguhdering/Counter Financing of
Terrorism (“AML/CFT”") requirements by putting in place AMCFT programme as well as
comprehensive policies, procedures and manuals. The ANML/@ogramme continues to be reviewed
and updated to reflect changes in the operational needsipdsss environment and regulatory
requirements. This covers areas on risk profiling of custan submission of cash threshold and
suspicious transaction reports, and handling of the iigyetstn orders issued by law enforcement
authorities.

Trainings are constantly arranged for employees of the Bemndelevant legal and regulatory requirements
governing the Bank’s activities. This aims to provide guida to employees on the implementation of
internal controls to manage compliance risk.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit (“IA”) function is led by the Chief Inteat Audit (“CIA”) and aptly supported by a
team with specialisation in key risk areas. To preserveridependence of the IA function, the CIA has a
functional reporting line to the AC, and administrativetythe MD/CEO and Internal Audit Bureau of the
Parent Bank. The IA function is governed and guided by thekBaAudit Charter, regulatory guidelines
and policies of Parent Bank.

IA function adopts a risk-based approach, driven by a syatienrand comprehensive risk assessment
model in managing internal audit activities. The fundarakframework for the internal audit function is
based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of teadivay Commission (“COSO”) framework,
a well-recognised risk and control framework for the evabraof the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control.

Risk assessment on the auditable functions are conductathiynto form the risk-based audit plan for
approval by the AC. The IA function focuses its efforts onfpeming audits and reviews in accordance
with the approved audit plan to provide independent assasisover adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management, internal control system and governance gteuof the auditable functions. Execution of
time-bound remedial action plans are closely monitorechguee audit issues are resolved timely. The 1A
function is also taking advisory role to add-value to theiglesind application of operating processes and
risk controls.
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INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK  (continued)
(e) Human Capital Management

One of the key constituents of any internal control systenitsispeople and that the system of risk
management and internal control is dependent on the soulghent, integrity and strong sense of
accountability that employees apply to their work. Henbe, Bank has put in place relevant policies and
procedures that govern all aspects of human capital mar&genom talent acquisition and development,
performance and consequence management to cessadioployment.

The Bank is committed to conduct its business with integsigcerity and honesty in compliance with the
relevant governing laws, regulations and guidelines. T® é¢nd, the Bank has established a Compliance
Handbook encompassing, among others, the Code of Ethic€anduct for Staff, Data Secrecy and
Protection and Management of Customer Information and RednDisclosures which sets out the
requirements imposed by the Bank and the regulatory atigmrio be observed and complied by all
employees.

The Code of Ethics and Conduct for Staff which sets out souirtiples and standards of good practice
to be observed and complied by all employees aimed at upiwltlie proper working and ethical
standards that are expected by the Bank in itmbasidealings.

The Bank has established the Whistleblowing Policy and &toces for Whistleblowing Reporting which
provide an avenue for employees and third parties to raisepwrt concerns in relation to any illegal,
unethical or questionable practices. At the same time, taekHBs wholly committed to ensure strict
confidentiality and to protect the whistleblower from thiskr of reprisal. The policy in relation to
Whistleblowing Reporting by Third Party is availatin the corporate website of the Bank.

REMUNERATION
(&) Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Board recognises the importance of setting a fair andpetitive remuneration package for INEDs
which commensurate with their expertise, skills, respaitises, risks and time commitments being a
Director of the Bank. The determination of the INEDs’ remtat®n is a matter for the Board as a whole
and is subject to the approval of the shareholder. The lelvedrauneration of INEDs is linked to their
level of responsibilities.

Currently, the INEDs of the Bank receive Directors’ fees ameéeting attendance allowances for
Board/Board Committee meetings attended. The nature amu@nof each major element of the
remuneration of the MD/CEO and Non-Executive Directors tfog financial year ended 31 December
2019 are disclosed in Note 31(c) to the financial statemdntaddition, Non-Executive Directors also
receive other benefits including Directors & Officers Lilelp Insurance, provided that such Director has
not acted negligently, fraudulently or dishonestiyin breach of his/her duty of trust.
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REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Remuneration Policy of the Bank

The Bank has established a remuneration policy which has approved by the Board and is subject to

periodic review of the Board, including when material chesigre made to the policy. The remuneration
policy provides a framework that can be implemented andaalple year after year. This is to ensure all

employees are compensated fairly, transparently and witloper governance process across all levels of
jobs.

The Bank’'s compensation approach is performance oriemedket aware and aligned with business
strategy and stakeholder interests. To ensure the compatts and effectiveness of remuneration as well
as transparency and internal equity, the principles ofasnable conduct and performance define the key
pillars of the remuneration policy.

There are two (2) main components, i.e. fixed remuneratiwh \&ariable remuneration which form the
total cash payable to employees of the Bank. The fixed renatioa refers to basic salary and fixed
allowances while the variable remuneration referthée discretionary bonus which is cash based.

The allocation of total cash, i.e. basic salary, fixed alowes and bonus is subject to the approval of the
Board on an annual basis based on the overall financial peaioce of the Bank and in alignment with
group wide pre-defined guideline and formula seth®/Parent Bank.

Being a performance driven organisation, the performaneasarement through quantitative indicators,
gualitative indicators and penalty point which includeshbfinancial and non-financial goals, short term
and long term perspectives and incorporates measuresdetatisk, compliance and process control aims
to support a performance based culture which promotes ptuidd taking and long term sustainability of
the Bank.

The total bonus pool of the Bank is determined based on theabh¥imancial performance of the Bank in
alignment with group wide pre-defined guideline and forangkt by Parent Bank which is subject to
adjustment upon taking into consideration of bathrgitative risk measures and qualitative risk ootes.

The subsequent allocation of bonus for individual is debeeth in accordance with the performance
assessment results of the individual and the departmentach based on the pre-defined matrix and may
be adjusted based on the accountability of audk,and compliance findings or disciplinary action.

In order to reinforce strong internal governance and togefed the independence and authority of control
functions, i.e. internal audit, compliance and risk mamaget of the Bank, the performance and
remuneration of the control functions are measured andsssdendependently from the departments and
branches they support to avoid any conflict of riets.

From the perspective of prudent risk taking and long terntagnability as well as the alignment between
risk and reward of the Bank, a portion of bonus for Senior Mgmaent, Senior Officers and Other
Material Risk Takers of the Bank is subject to deferment af (§) to twelve (12) months from the

financial year end with the deferred portion increasing amdem with the individual's level of

accountability.
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REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Remuneration Policy of the Bank

The vesting of bonus or deferred bonus is subject to finalltesf individual performance assessment and
the overall financial performance of the Bank. The Board 8edior Management of the Bank reserve the
discretion to make potential adjustment, forfeiture ootlgh malus on any bonus or deferred bonus that
has not been paid to or vested to the individual within tleinté13) months from the financial year end in
the event of resignation or cessation of employment wittBhek or ICBC Group, misconduct or material
restatement of financial results of the Bank.

All the Senior Management, Senior Officers and Other MateRisk Takers of the Bank are required to
commit not to undertake activities such as personal hedgfimgegies and liability related insurance that
will undermine the risk alignment effects embeddetheir remuneration.

The following depicts the remuneration awarded to the Seklianagement, Senior Officers and Other
Material Risk Takers of the Bank for the finangiabr ended 31 December 2019.

Senior Management anq Other Material Risk

Category Senior Officers Takers
(8 headcounts) (13 headcounts)

Total Value of remuneration Unrestricted | Deferred | Unrestricted | Deferred

awards for the financial year RM’000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM'000
Fixed Remuneration
* Cash-based 4,494 - 3,837 -
* Shares and share-linked instrumgnts - . - -
* Others - - -
Variable Remuneration
* Cash-based 2,312 - 1,145 -
* Shares and share-linked instrumgnts - . - -
* Others - - -

The Senior Management and Senior Officers of the Bank armetbfas the MD/CEO, Deputy CEO,
Assistant CEO, CCO, CIA and CRO.

Other Material Risk Takers of the Bank are defined as indiald whose responsibilities have a material
impact on the performance and risk profile of the Bank andviddals whose responsibilities require them
to take on material risk exposure on behalf ofBhek.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

It is the Board’'s commitment to present a balanced and mghaidimssessment of the Bank’s financial
performance and prospects at the end of the financial yearagly through the annual financial statements to
BNM. The Board is assisted by the AC to oversee the Bank'shfife reporting process and the quality of its
financial reporting.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT  (continued)

Directors’ responsibility statement in respect of he preparation of the audited financial statements

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the financiaestents give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Bank as at the end of the accounting period dris dinancial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended. In preparing the financial statemém@d)irectors have ensured that the preparation and
fair presentation of these financial statements are inrdece with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,

International Financial Reporting Standards and the requénts of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia in all
material respects and other legal requirements.

Relationship with the Auditors

Key features underlying the relationship of the With the external auditors are included in the ATGR.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

Before the financial statements of the Bank were made oatDinectors took reasonable steps to ascertain
that:-

(a) all known bad debts have been written off and adegprovision has been made for doubtful debts; and

(b) any current assets which were unlikely to be redlis the ordinary course of business have beetewri
down to an amount which they might be expecteasedlise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are ne&ge of any circumstances:-

(a) that would render the amount written off for bad debts or th@ant of the provision for doubtful debts in
the Bank inadequate to any substantial extent; or

(b) that would render the value attributed to the current assetthe financial statements of the Bank
misleading; or

(c) which has arisen which render adherence to the existingadaifvaluation of assets and liabilities of the
Bank misleading or inappropriate; or

(d) not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial stagnts, that would render any amount stated in
the financial statements of the Bank misleading.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:-

(a) any charge on the assets of the Bank that has arisen sincedha ée financial year and which secures
the liabilities of any other person; or

(b) any contingent liability in respect of the Bank that hasemisince the end of the financial year other than
those arising from the ordinary course of the bagkiusiness.

No contingent liability or other liability of the Bank has ¢eme enforceable, or is likely to become enforceable
within the period of twelve months after the end of the finahgear which, in the opinion of the Directors,
will or may substantially affect the ability of tiBank to meet its obligations as and when theydiad.
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performandetloe Bank for the financial year ended 31

December 2019 has not been substantially affected by amy ftansaction or event of a material and unusual
nature nor has any such item, transaction or event occunrégei interval between the end of that financial
year and the date of this report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events after the financial year aréodisd in Note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors, KPMG PLT, have indicated their wiiress to accept re-appointment.
The auditors’ remuneration is disclosed in Notea®fhe financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in adamice with a resolution of the Directors.

Chin Chee Kong
Director

Sum Leng Kuang
Director

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Date: 13 May 2020
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO
Section 251(2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, Chin Chee Kong and Sum Leng Kuang being two of the Direadbtndustrial and Commercial Bank of
China (Malaysia) Berhad, do hereby state on behalf of theedbirs that, in our opinion, the financial
statements set out on pages 30 to 107 are drawn up in accerdetit Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Financial Reporting Standamdsthe requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financialifpms of the Bank as at 31 December 2019 and of
its financial performance and cash flows for thanthen ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in ademice with a resolution of the Directors:-

Chin Chee Kong
Director

Sum Leng Kuang
Director

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Date: 13 May 2020
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STATUTORY DECLARATION PURSUANT TO

Section 251(1)(b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, Wang Qiang, the Officer primarily responsible for thedircial management of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, do solemnly and sincerelglare that the financial statements set out on

pages 30 to 107 are, to the best of my knowledge and beliefectoand | make this solemn declaration
conscientiously believing the declaration to be trand by virtue of the Statutory Declarations A&60.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by the above named, Wamg QPP no. PE1812244), in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia on 13 May 2020

Wang Qiang

BEFORE ME:



Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad
Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia)
Berhad, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 30 to 107.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
auditors’ report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics,
Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial
statements of the Bank and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Bank does not cover the Directors’ Report and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Bank, our responsibility is to read
the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements of the Bank or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of the Directors’ Report, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Bank
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in
Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such internal control as the Directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Bank that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, the Directors are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Bank to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend
to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fin ancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the
Bank as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on
auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Fin ancial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:-

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Bank,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Bank.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Bank to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of
the Bank or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the
Bank, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Bank represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

28



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the members of the Bank, as a body, in accordance with Section
266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

KPMG PLT Chin Shoon Chong
(LLP0O010081-LCA & AF 0758) Approval Number: 02823/04/2021 J
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant

Petaling Jaya, Malaysia

Date: 13 May 2020
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2 019

2019 2018
Note RM’'000 RM’'000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 4 1,177,767 1,017,586
Deposits and placements with banks and other
financial institutions 5 171,563 12,467
Financial investments measured at fair value thncatber
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) 6 594,788 589,715
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 7 117,163 117,269
Loans, advances and financing 8 2,914,539 3,008,073
Derivative financial assets 9 2,014 8,155
Other assets 10 15,980 15,211
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia 11 42,31 42,602
Tax recoverable 5,850 -
Property and equipment 12 6,196 8,319
Right-of-use assets 13 9,936 -
Intangible asset 14 - -
Deferred tax assets 15 11,905 10,298
TOTAL ASSETS 5,069,018 4,829,695
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 16 2,868,356 2,502,567
Deposits and placements of banks and other
financial institutions 17 933,714 1,130,042
Derivative financial liabilities 9 2,639 7,786
Other liabilities 18 81,268 71,352
Lease liabilities 13 9,918 -
Provision for commitments and contingencies 19 7,004 4,546
Provision for taxation 20 345 7,376
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,903,244 3,723,669
EQUITY
Share capital 21 832,609 832,609
Reserves 22 333,165 273,417
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER
OF THE BANK 1,165,774 1,106,026
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,069,018 4,829,695
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 33 2,646,461 4,084,834

The notes set out on pages 36 to 107 form an mitegrt of these financial statements.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad

Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income

Net fee income
Net trading income
Other operating income

Net operating income
Other operating expenses

Operating profit
Allowance for impairment on loans, advances
and financing
Allowance for impairment on other financial assets

Profit before taxation
Tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Items that are or may be reclassified subsequ
to/(from) profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve
- Currency translation differences in respect of
foreign operations
Fair value reserve
- Changes in fair value
- Amount transferred to profit or loss
- Deferred tax adjustment

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per ordinary share (s

Note

23
23
23

24
25

26

27

29

15

30

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
201,196 201,925

(83,239) (78,394)
117,957 123,531
10,890 25,660
18,595 32,552
102 70
147,544 181,813
(73,142) (80,925)
74,402 100,888
(16,507) (4,976)
28 (820) (263)
57,075 95,649
(6,752) (16,831)
50,323 78,818
34 (548)
11,483 2,68
849 93
(2,941) (829
9,391 1,947
9,425 1,399
59,748 80,217
6.04 9.47

The notes set out on pages 36 to 107 form an integral part of thesedilisaieiments.
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Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad

Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEM BER 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Property and equipment written off
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Allowance for impairment on loans, advances andrfaing
Allowance for impairment on other financial assets
Net unrealised losses/(gains) arising from denveatiading
Transfer to/(from) foreign currency translationers
Accretion of discounts net of amortisation of prems of financial
investments measured at FVOCI
Accretion of discounts net of amortisation of prems of financial
investments measured at amortised cost

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in operating assets
Deposits and placements with banks and other finhmstitutions

Loans, advances and financing
Other assets
Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

Changes in operating liabilities
Deposits from customers
Deposits and placements of banks and other finhinsitutions

Other liabilities

Cash from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment

Net proceeds from/(purchase of) financial inmesits measured at FVOCI

Net purchase of financial investments measutegnartised cost

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

34

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
57,075 95,649
3,521 3,793
4,418 -
405 -
- 44
- 1
16,507 4,976
208 263
994 (190)
34 (548)
544 398
106 (742)
24,4 103,644
(159,094) 137,534
79,488 177,291
(769) (4,036)
1,285 (22,224)
365,789 (336,958)
(196,328) 223,062
9,913 6,222
184,708 284,535
(24,181) (27,608)
160,527 256,927
(1,398) (2,466)
5,866 (215,336)
- (84,271)
4,468 (302,073)




Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad

Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

35

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECE MBER 2019 (continued)

Cash flows used in financing activity
Net payment of lease liabilities

Net cash used in financing activity

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the finaral year

Add/(Less): Write-back of/(Allowance for) creditde for the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financiakgr

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
Cash and short-term funds

2019

Note RM’000

(4,841)

2018
RM’000

(4,841)

160,154
1,017,586

(45,146)
1,062,837

1,177,740
27

1,017,691
(105)

1,177,767

1,017,586

4 1,177,767

1,017,586

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cashléws arising from financing activity:

Lease liabilities

At 1 January 2019
Impact on adoption of MFRS16

At 1 January 2019, Restated
Acquisition of new leases

Net payment of lease liabilities
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Termination of leases

At 31 December 2019

Cash outflows for leases as a lessee

Included in net cash from operating activities:
Payment relating to short-term leases
Payment relating to leases of low-value assets

Included in net cash used in financing activity:

Principal paid in relation to lease liabilities
Interest paid in relation to lease liabilities

Total cash outflows for leases

13

26
26

The notes set out on pages 36 to 107 form anratpgrt of these financial statements.

2019
RM’000

14,143

14,143
383
(4,841)
405
(172)
9,018

30
43

73

4,436
405

4,841

4,914



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad 36
Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDE D 31 DECEMBER 2019

1.

General information

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhadai public limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia. The Bank is priatliijpengaged in the provision of banking and
other related financial services. The address of its regist office and principal place of business is as
follows:-

Level 10, Menara Maxis
Kuala Lumpur City Centre
50088 Kuala Lumpur.

The Directors regard Industrial and Commercial Bank of @Hiimited, a corporation incorporated in
China, as the holding corporation of the Bank.

The financial statements were authorised for isguthe Board of Directors on 13 May 2020.
Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Bank have been preparedcord@nce with Malaysian Financial
Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International FinanciapBrting Standards and the requirements
of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

The following are accounting standards, interpretatiom$ amendments that have been issued by
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASBU} bave not been adopted by the Bank:-

Amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

e Amendments to MFRS Business Combinations - Definition of a Business
Amendments to MFRS 10Bresentation of Financial Statemerasd MFRS 108Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and ErrdDefinition of Material

e Amendments to MFRS 9Financial Instruments MFRS 139, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measuremerind MFRS 7,Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

MFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
e MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

e Amendments to MFRS 10Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification iabllities
as Current or Non-current
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2.

Basis of preparation(continued)

(a) Statement of compliancécontinued)

(b)

()

(d)

Amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date yet to be confirmed

e Amendments to MFRS 1@ onsolidated Financial Statemenééd MFRS 128|nvestments in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of &ssbetween an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The Bank plans to apply the abovementioned accounting atdadnd amendments from the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2020 for those accountinglatals amendments that are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, @X{oe Amendments to MFRS 3 as it is
not applicable to the Bank.

The Bank does not plan to apply MFRS 1isurance Contractand Amendments to MFRS 101
that are effective for annual periods beginning on 1 JanR@1 and 1 January 2022 respectively as
they are not applicable to the Bank.

The initial applications of the accounting standards anérdments are not expected to have any
material financial impact to the current period gmigdr period financial statements of the Bank.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Bank have been preparedeohistorical cost basis other than as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaly/&&1”), which is the Bank’s functional
currency. All financial information is presented in RM andshbeen rounded to the nearest
thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial information and financial tetaents in conformity with MFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates amitisws that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assetslitles, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estima

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on aoir@ngpasis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estsrate revised and in any future periods
affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertaintgt aritical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have significant effect on the ants recognised in the financial statements
other than those disclosed in the following notes:-

e Note 35.3 - Valuation of financial instruments
e Note 35.4(b) - Expected credit loss (“ECL") measoeat
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3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been appliedistensly to the periods presented in these
financial statements unless otherwise stated.

Arising from the adoption of MFRS 16,eases there is a change to the accounting policy applied to
lease contracts entered into by the Bank as compared to #pgdied in previous financial statements.
The impacts arising from the change are disclogédbite 37.

(&) Foreign currency

(b)

(i) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to tmetional currency of the Bank at
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreigrrengies at the end of the reporting
period are retranslated to the functional currestdjne exchange rate at that date.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreigrencies are not retranslated at the
end of reporting period except for those that are measurtdratalue which are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate atitite that the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslationracegnised in profit or loss, except for
differences arising from the retranslation of equity inetents designated as measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) whiche aecognised in other
comprehensive income.

(i) Operations denominated in functional currenciesother than Ringgit Malaysia

The assets and liabilities of operations denominated intfanal currencies other than RM, are
translated to RM at exchange rates at the end of the repguéirigd. The income and expenses
of the foreign operations are translated to RMvatage exchange rates for the period.

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in otbemprehensive income and
accumulated in the Foreign Currency TranslatioreRes(“FCTR”) in equity.

When settlement of a monetary item receivable from or paytbh foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exgeagains and losses arising from
such a monetary item are considered to form part of a netimes in a foreign operation and
are recognised in other comprehensive income, engrasented in the FCTR in equity.

Interest recognition

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit orusisg the effective interest method. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discouhts éstimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the financial assédiability (or, where appropriate, a shorter
period) to the net carrying amount of the financial assefalility. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows corisglall contractual terms of the financial
instrument, but not future credit losses.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Interest recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised at gross basis for finandséta under Stage 1 and Stage 2 ECL.
However, interest income is recognised at net Hasinancial assets under Stage 3 ECL.

Fees recognition

Loan arrangement fees which are material are recognisettame when all conditions precedent
are fulfilled. Guarantee fees and commitment fees whichnaaterial are recognised as income
based on time apportionment.

Other fee income on services and facilities extended tooousts are recognised as the related
services are performed.

Other fee expenses relating mainly to transaction and aefees, are expensed off as the services
are received.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred taxer@ tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that itteesddo items recognised directly in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable onakabte income or loss for the year,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the &rideoreporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previonarfcial years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, fatng for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the statenof financial position and their tax
bases. Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporaneréifices arising from the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction tHégets neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are texpéx be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that haredracted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there isgally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxegdebly the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they irdea settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities vglrealised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it ibgile that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can lisad. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and are reduced to thatekigt it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(e) Financial instruments

(i)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, depasiisdebt securities issued on the
date they are originated. Regular way purchases and safgmntial assets are recognised on
the trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase or seldkets. All financial assets and
liabilities (including assets and liabilities designatadfair value through profit or loss) are

initially recognised in the statement of financial positizwhen, and only when, the Bank

becomes a party to the contractual provisions @friktruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured inilyaat its fair value plus or minus, for a
financial instrument not at fair value through profit or $0¢“FVTPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to its acquisition oniasce.

(i) Financial instrument categories and subsequennheasurement

Financial Assets

Categories of financial assets are determined on initiebggition and are not reclassified

subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Bankngea its business model for managing
financial assets in which case all affected financial a&saet reclassified on the first day of the
first reporting period following the change of thesiness mode

Amortised cost

A financial instrument is measured at amortised cost if #seais held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractudi flasvs, and the contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cashsfltvat are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstandifge financial assets are not
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Subsgqte initial recognition, these

financial assets are measured at amortised cost using fhetie$ interest method. The

amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interestnie, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Aaiy g@r loss on derecognition is

recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income -tDeestments

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI only if the asset igl Wéthin a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractigh flows and selling financial
assets, and the contractual terms of the financial assetrigi® on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on thecgal amount outstanding. The debt
investment is not designated as at fair value through posfitoss. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognisedfihgp loss. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Gecalgiition, gains and losses
accumulated in other comprehensive income aregsifiled to profit or loss.

Interest income is recognised by applying effective irgerate to the gross carrying amount
except for credit impaired financial assets (see NoteiB(Mhere the effective interest rate is
applied to the amount net of ECL.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
(e) Financial instruments(continued)
(i) Financial instrument categories and subsequentheasurement (continued)
Financial Assets(continued)

Fair value through profit or loss

All financial assets, including derivative financial alssenot measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI are classified as measured at FVTPL. On initial redimm the Bank may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the ezgeirts to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI to be measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminatesignificantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. Subsdtydimancial assets at FVTPL are
measured at their fair value. Net gains or losses, includmginterest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets, except for those measured at FVTPLsabgect to impairment assessment
(see Note 3(I)(i)).

Financial Liabilities
The categories of financial liabilities at initi@cognition are as follows:-

Fair value through profit or los

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises firahnbabilities that are derivatives
(except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee @mttor a designated and effective
hedging instrument), contingent consideration in a bussim®mbination and financial liabilities
that are specifically designated into this categgogn initial recognition.

On initial recognition, the Bank may irrevocably designatéinancial liability that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised coseas tie measured at fair value
through profit or loss:-

- if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accaghinismatch that would otherwise
arise;

- a group of financial liabilities or assets and financiabiiities is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a dootederisk management or
investment strategy, and information about the group isigeal internally on that basis to the
Bank’s key management personnel; or

- if a contract contains one or more embedded derivativestamtost is not a financial asset in
the scope of MFRS 9, where the embedded derivative significenodifies the cash flows and
separation is not prohibited.

Financial liabilities categorised as fair value througbfjtror loss are subsequently measured at
their fair value with gains or losses, including any intérespense are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(e) Financial instruments(continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument categories and subsequenneasurement (continued)
Financial Liabilities (continued)

Fair value through profit or losgcontinued)

For financial liabilities that are designated as fair vatheough profit or loss upon initial
recognition, the Bank recognises the amount of changeivéie of the financial liability that
is attributable to change in credit risk in other comprelhenmcome and the remaining amount
of the change in fair value in profit or loss, unless the wesit of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk would create or enlarge accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost
Other financial liabilities not categorised as fair valtreough profit or loss are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effectiveastenethod.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses@mgnised in profit or loss. Any
gains or losses on derecognition are also recodgjivisprofit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition

(iv)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractuultagreceive cash flows from the
assets has expired; or when the Bank has transferred itsactudl right to receive the cash
flows of the financial assets, and either substantiallyttadl risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred; or the Bank has neither retainedarsferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, but has not retainedrabot the assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference betwthe carrying amount and the sum
of consideration received (including any new asset obthiess any new liability assumed) and
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recodnisequity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Bank'sti@mtual obligations are discharged,
cancelled, or expire.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the differencetiveen the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished or transferred to anathgarty and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or lidsilassumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset amalnet amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally enforceabgghtito offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or reatisedisset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basigtmn permitted under the MFRSs.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balaritedanks and other financial
institutions and money at call and deposits and placemeataring within one month, which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair valuend are used by the Bank in the
management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are initially recognised at faluev and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, netalidwance for credit loss. The
measurement of credit loss is based on a three-stage edpmettt loss model as described in Note

3.
Deposits and placements with banks and other famcial institutions

Deposits and placements with banks and other financiatutisns including placements with BNM
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequentlysuead at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, net of allowance for credit loss. The mes=mant of credit loss is based on a three-
stage expected credit loss model as described i@ 3(§(i).

Other receivables

Othel receivable are initially recognise al their cost: wher the contractue right to receive cast or
another financial asset from another entity istdistaed.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other receivables aemsured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Property and equipment

Recognition and measurement
All purchases above RM1,000 are capitalised. Items of ptg@ad equipment are measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impat losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributéblihe acquisition of the asset and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to wogkaondition for its intended use, and the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoriegsite on which they are located, and
capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software thattégial to the functionality of the related
equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When significant parts of an item of property and equipmemtehdifferent useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major componefhspperty and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property angipegent is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the futumeomic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Bank and its cost can be measurbahilg. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. Thatscof the day-to-day servicing of
property and equipment are recognised in profibss when incurred.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(i)

()

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its résidige. Significant components of
individual assets are assessed, and if a component has @l ligefthat is different from the
remainder of that asset, then that component ieed&gted separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straigie-basis over the estimated useful life of
each component of an item of property and equipment sinsentbst closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits efigzbin the asset. The property and
equipment are depreciated commencing from the month subsédo the month of addition, and
depreciation is accounted for up to the month spdsal at the following annual rates:-

Depreciation rate per annum (%)

Electronic equipment 33.33

Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 20

Computer software 10

Improvement on leased assets Over the lease period

Property and equipment under construction are not depegciatil the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation methods, rates, useful lives and residualesadre reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and adjusted as appropriate.

Disposal and write-off

On disposal of an item of property and equipment, the diffeeebetween the net disposal proceeds
and its carrying amount is taken to profit or loss. Disposaicpeds may also apply to fully
depreciated assets. Where an item of property and equipmentlonger in use, it will be written
off.

Leases

The Bank has applied MFRS 16 using the modified retrospecéipproach, under which the
cumulative effect of initial application is recognised as adjustment to retained earnings as at 1
January 2019. Accordingly, the comparative informatioesgnted for 2018 has not been restated -
i.e. it is presented, as previously reported uMdiERS 117 | easesand related interpretations.

Current financial year

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveyighd to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 3sess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, Bank assesses whether:-

e the contract involves the use of an identified asset - thiy fpa specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represeaunibstantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substargivbstitution right, then the asset is not
identified;

e the custome has the right to obtair substantiall all of the economit benefit: from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and
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3.

Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

0)

Leases(continued)
Current financial year (continued)
Definition of a lease (continued)

e the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset. 0$terner has this right when it has
the decision-making rights that are most relevant to chiapgow and for what purpose the
asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about howiawtidt purpose the asset is used
is predetermined, the customer has the right to direct theofithe asset if either the customer
has the right to operate the asset; or the customer desigae$set in a way that predetermines
how and for what purpose it will be used.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contdesse component, the Bank allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease and non-leaspaent on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of properties iclwte Bank is a lessee, it has elected not
to separate non-lease components and will instead accouttid lease and non-lease components
as a single lease component.

Recognition and initial measurement
As a lesse

The Bank recognises a right-of-use asset and a leasetljahilthe lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which poses the initial amount of the lease

liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or befsgecommencement date, plus any initial

direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantleramove the underlying asset or to

restore the underlying asset or the site on whichldcated, less any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the presentieadf the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interesinateit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Bank’s incremental borrowintge.raGenerally, the Bank uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement oételliability comprise the following:-

fixed payments, including in-substance fixed paytsdess any incentives receivable;
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a ratiallynineasured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;
e amounts expected to be payable under a residus galarantee;
the exercise price under a purchase option thaB&md is reasonably certain to exercise; and
e penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Bam&dsonably certain not to terminate
early.

The Bank excludes variable lease payments that are linkddtdoe performance or usage of the
underlying asset from the lease liability. Instead, thesgnpents are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the performance or use occurs.

The Bank has elected not to recognise right-of-use asset$ease liabilities for short-term leases
thal have a least terr of 12 month: or less anc lease of low-value asset: The Bank recognise the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expeasstraight-line basis over the lease
term.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

0)

(k)

Leases(continued)

Current financial year (continued)
Subsequent measurement

As a lessee

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated usgieg straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the usefublifbe right-of-use asset or the end of
the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-issets are determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition, the rightteé asset is periodically reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for centameasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using ffleeteve interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising frolnamge in an index or rate, if there is
a revision of in-substance fixed lease payments, or if ti;eeechange in the Bank’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value geataaot if the Bank changes its

assessment of whether it will exercise a purchagension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a correspondingsadient is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or losth# carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

Previous financial year
As a lessee

Operating lease

Leases, where the Bank did not assume substantially allithe and rewards of ownership were
classified as operating leases and the leased assets vigezognised in the statement of financial
position.

Payments made under operating leases were recognisediinoploss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were resgmhm profit or loss as an integral part
of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. @amtirentals were charged to profit or
loss in the reporting period in which they weretimed.

Intangible asset

Intangible asset represents admission fee and is measucedtdess accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of intdegasset is calculated to write-off the
cost of the intangible asset on a straight-line basis over dbktimated useful life of 5 years.
Intangible asset is subject to impairment review if there avents or changes in circumstances
which indicate that the carrying amount may notdzmverable.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)
() Impairment

() Financial assets
The Bank assesses impairment by using a forward looking€eéebgn credit loss” (“ECL")
model. The ECL model applies to financial assets measuredhattised cost, contract assets
and debt instruments measured at fair value throtiger comprehensive income.

Based on the ECL model policy established, an assessmestfizriped at the end of each
reporting period, of whether a financial instrument’s dreidk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, by considering the change in the risklefault occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument.

The assessment of credit risk, as well as the estimation &f, B required to be unbiased,
probability-weighted and should incorporate all avakabiformation which is relevant to the

assessment, including information about past eventseguionditions and reasonable and
supportable forecasts of future events and economic donditat the reporting date. In

addition, the estimation of ECL should also take account the time value of money.

The three-stage approach which reflects the chengedit quality of the financial instrument
since initial recognition is as follows:-

Stage 1: 12-month ECL - non-credit impaired

For exposures where there has not been a significant irereasredit risk since initial
recognition that are not credit impaired upon originatiow avith a day past due (“DPD”) of
equal or less than 30 days, the ECL associated with the pilpath default events occurring
within next 12 months will be recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL - non-credit impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increasedit risk since initial recognition
but that are non-credit impaired and with a DPD between 3F day89 days, a lifetime ECL
will be recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL - credit impaired

A financial asset is assessed as credit impaired when itstieetBank’s default criteria which
have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash fldvisad asset and with a DPD equal
or more than 90 days. For financial assets that are creditineg, a lifetime ECL will be
recognised.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

() Impairment (continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assetqcontinued)

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measutednartised cost is recognised in
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the asset is redticemligh the use of an allowance
account.

An impairment loss in respect of financial assets measuré¥/@®cCl is recognised in profit or
loss and the allowance account is recognised ier@abmprehensive income.

At each reporting period, the Bank assesses whether fialassets at amortised cost and
FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit impdiwhen one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flofvthe financial asset have
occurred.

Other assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assetedpkfor deferred tax assets) are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determinethveinghere is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then disset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are groupgsditer into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing useatbdargely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets (known as cash-generatirity. u

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generatingsuthi igreater of its value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing valueénthe estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discoatg that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks spéeiftee asset or cash-generating
unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of amset or its related cash-
generating unit exceeds its estimated recoverabtmiat.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impammosses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce thryiogramount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or a group of cash-generatiitg)iand then to reduce the carrying
amounts of the other assets in the cash-generating unitdooup of cash-generating units) on
apro rata basis.
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

()

Impairment (continued)
(i) Other assets(continued)

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assegdbe end of each reporting period
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longstse An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates usetetmite the recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. An impaithoss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the cagrayitount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impant loss had been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit o8 Inghe financial year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(m) Provisions

(n)

(0)

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, taekBhas a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probdbét an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expectedrdutash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value oeynand the risk specific to the liability.
The unwinding of the discount is recognised asniogacost.

Provision for commitments and contingencies

The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters of credii@am commitments but the nominal values
of these instruments are not recorded in the statement andial position. The same assessment
criteria are used by the Bank in making commitments and ¢immail obligations for off-balance
sheet risks as it does for on-balances sheet lesatsa

The measurement of credit loss for these irrevocable diffu® sheet assets is based on a three-
stage expected credit loss model as described i@ 3(9(i).

Employee benefits
(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of regda annual bonuses, paid annual
leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted bdsexaensed as the related service
is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paider short-term cash bonus if the
Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pesyaimount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation caediignated reliably.

(i) Defined contribution plan

The Bank’s contributions to statutory pension funds aregddto profit or loss in the financial
year to which they relate. Once the contributions have besd, gthe Bank has no further
payment obligation
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3. Significant accounting policiegcontinued)

(p) Earnings per ordinary share
The Bank presents basic earnings per share (“EdR84)for its ordinary shares.

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atitdble to ordinary shareholders of the
Bank by the weighted average number of ordinaryeshautstanding during the period.

No diluted EPS is presented in these financial statementsess are no dilutive potential ordinary
shares

(q) Fair value measurement

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-bagagment and lease transactions, is
determined as the price that would be received to sell art asggid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at thesomeaent date. The measurement assumes
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the ilipltélkes place either in the principal market
or in the absence of a principal market, in thetradsantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takesaiccount a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its siigimel best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset ihighest and best use.

The Bank recognises transfers between levels of fair vaileeatchy as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfers.

4. Cash and short-term funds

2019 2018
RM’'000 RM’'000
Cash and balances with banks and other finanattutions 92,623 470,089
Money at call and deposits and placements matwvitign one month 1,085,244 547,624
1,177,867 1,017,713
Less: Allowance for credit loss (100) (127)
1,177,767 1,017,586

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and thregmonding allowance for credit loss is as

follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2019 1,017,713 - - 1,017,713
New assets originated 883,875 - - 883,875
Assets derecognised or repaid (723,721) - - (723,721)
At 31 December 2019 1,177,867 - - 1,177,867
At 1 January 2018 1,062,859 - - 1,062,859
New assets originat 801,35: - - 801,35:
Assets derecognised or repaid (846,497) - - (846,497)
At 31 December 2018 1,017,713 - - 1,017,713
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4. Cash and short-term funds(continued)

Allowance for credit loss

At 1 January 2019

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Changes in model/risk parameter
At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
At 31 December 2018

51

5. Deposits and placements with banks and other fimgial institutions

Foreign banks
Licensed Malaysian ban

Less: Allowance for credit loss

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
127 - - 127
139 - - 139
(203) - - (203)
37 - - 37
100 - - 100
22 - - 22
124 - - 124
(19) - - (19)
127 - - 127
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
- 12,473
171,56: -
171,563 12,473
- (6)
171,563 12,467

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and thregonding allowance for credit loss is as

follows:

Gross carrying amount

At 1 January 2019

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
At 31 December 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
12,473 - - 12,473
171,563 - - 171,563
(12,473) - - (12,473)
171,563 - - 171,563
150,000 - - 150,000
12,473 - - 12,473
(150,000) - - (150,000)
12,473 - - 12,473
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5. Deposits and placements with banks and other fimgial institutions (continued)
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
Allowance for credit loss
At 1 January 2019 6 - - 6
New assets originated 4 - - 4
Assets derecognised or repaid (6) - - (6)
Foreign exchange adjustments 4) - - (4)
At 31 December 2019 - - - -
At 1 January 2018 27 - - 27
New assets originated 2 - - 2
Assets derecognised or repaid (30) - - (30)
Foreign exchange adjustments 7 - - 7
At 31 December 2018 6 - - 6
6. Financial investments measured at fair value throuly other comprehensive income
2019 2018
(i) By type RM'000 RM'000
Malaysian Government Securit 210,94 206,16:
Malaysian Government Investment Issues 227,266 222,374
Malaysian Government Guaranteed Sukuk 30,366 29,799
Financial institutions’ securities 29,638 30,630
Corporate bonds 81,463 80,747
Other debt securities
- Cagamas bonds 15,113 20,003
594,788 589,715
(i) By maturity structure 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Within one year 74,850 4,993
More than one year to three years 172,775 191,800
More than three years to five years 347,163 196,311
More than five years - 196,611
594,788 589,715
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6. Financial investments measured at fair value thragh other comprehensive incomécontinued)

(i) Movement of gross carrying amount and the allowance for creil loss to other comprehensive

income

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2019 589,715 - - 589,715
New assets originated 476 - - 476
Assets derecognised or repaid (6,886) - - (6,886)
Changes in fair value 11,483 11,483
At 31 December 2019 594,788 - - 594,788
At 1 January 2018 372,094 - - 372,094
New assets originated or purchased 216,388 - - 216,388
Changes in fair value 2,683 2,683
Assets derecognised or repaid (1,450) - - (1,450)
At 31 December 2018 589,715 - - 589,715

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
Allowance for credit loss
At 1 January 201 692 - - 69¢
New assets originated 507 - - 507
Assets derecognised or repaid (28) - - (28)
Changes in model/risk parameter 370 - - 370
At 31 December 2019 1,542 - - 1,542
At 1 January 2018 601 - - 601
New assets originated or purchased 209 - - 209
Assets derecognised or repaid (116) - - (116)
Foreign exchange adjustments (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2018 693 - - 693

The carrying amount of financial investments measured & EMs their fair values. Accordingly,
the recognition of allowance for credit loss does not affeetcarrying amount of those assets, but is
reflected as a debit to profit or loss and creglibther comprehensive income.
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7. Financial investments measured at amortised cost

(i)

(ii)

By type

Malaysian Government Investment Issues

Corporate bonds
Other debt securities
- Cagamas bonds

Less: Allowance for credit loss

By maturity structure

More than one year to three years
More than three years to five years

(i) Movement of gross carrying amount and allowane for credit loss to profit or loss

Gross carrying amount
At 1 January 2019
Assets derecognised or repaid

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018
New assets originated or purchased
Assets derecognised or repaid

At 31 December 2018

Allowance for credit loss

At 1 January 2019

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Changes in model/risk parameter

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018
New assets originated or purchased

At 31 December 2018

54
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
32,207 32,283
65,049 65,079
20,000 20,000
117,256 117,362
(93) (93)
117,163 117,269
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
82,256 20,000
35,000 97,362
117,256 117,362
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM'000 RM’000 RM'000
117,362 - - 117,362
(106) - - (106)
117,256 - - 117,256
32,349 - - 32,349
85,079 - - 85,079
(66) - - (66)
117,362 - - 117,362
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
93 - - 93
45 - - 45
(12) - - (12)
(33) - - (33)
93 - - 93
93 - - 93
93 - - 93
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8. Loans, advances and financing

(i)

(ii)

By type

Overdrafts

Term loans

- Housing loans

- Syndicated term loans
- Other term loans
Bridging loans

Bills receivable
Revolving credits
Bankers’ acceptances
Staff loans

Credit card loans

Gross loans, advances and financing

Less: Allowance for credit loss

- Stage 1 (12-month ECL)

- Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL - non-credit impaired)
- Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL - credit impaired)

Net loans, advances and financing

By type of customer

Domestic banking institutions

Domestic non-bank financial institutions
- Others

Domestic business enterprises

- Small medium enterprises

- Others

Individuals

Foreign entities

(iii) By interest rate sensitivity

Fixed rate loans

Variable rate

- Base rate/base lending rate plus
- Cost plus

- Other variable rates

55
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
32,663 57,299
92,228 76,641
871,854 935,364
468,032 534,029
150,360 -
45,217 21,123
1,163,572 1,268,287
129,072 139,984
1,881 2,004
2,341 2,124

2,957,2203,036,855

(27,460) (15,954

(124} (11,640
(1,117) (1,188

(42,681) (28,782)

2,914,539 3,008,073

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
41,605 52,806
50,011 140,278
159,574 65,029
1,760,138 1,530,081
49,707 46,452

896,185 1,202,209

2,957,220 3,036,855

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
4,221 4,128
79,142 82,817
2,770,958 2,808,749
102,899 141,161

2,957,220 3,036,855
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8. Loans, advances and financingcontinued)

(iv) By sector 2019 2018
RM’000 RM’'000
Primary agriculture 52,700 86,591
Manufacturing 287,228 206,698
Electricity, gas and water - 65,414
Construction 188,240 100,554
Real estate 465,811 476,939
Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels 2,833 835,595
Transport, storage and communication 127,928 108,308
Finance, insurance and business services 609,356 685,675
Education, health and others 440,940 372,592
Household 112,134 98,489

2,957,220 3,036,855

(v) By purpose 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000

Purchase of properti

- Non residential 154,884 155,994
- Residential 93,762 78,184
Purchase of transport vehic - 4

Purchase of fixed assets (excluding properties) 1624, 208,266
Construction 218,733 88,539
Credit card 2,341 2,124
Personal use 1,172 1,332
Mergers and acquisitions 150,360 -

Working capital 1,838,404 1,870,754
Other purpose 323,402 631,658

2,957,220 3,036,855

(vi) By geographical distribution 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000

Within Malaysia 2,300,064 2,140,728

Outside Malaysia 657,156 896,127

2,957,220 3,036,855

Concentration by location for loans, advances and finan@rbased on the geographical location
where the credit risk resides.

(vii) By residual contractual maturity 2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000

Maturity within one year 1,757,675 1,850,954

More than one year to three years 781,213 457,459

More than three years to five years 209,336 518,431

More than five years 208,996 210,011

2,957,220 3,036,855
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8.

Loans, advances and financingcontinued)

(viii) Impaired loans, advances and financing

(&) Movement in impaired loans, advances and fimeing

(b)

(©)

(d)

At 1 January

Impaired during the financial year

Reclassified as performing during the financialryea
Amount written off during the financial year
Exchange differences

At 31 December
As % of gross loans, advances and financing

By sector

Wholesale & retail trade and restaurants & hotels
Household

By purpose

Working capital
Credit card

By geographical distribution

Within Malaysia
Outside Malaysia

Concentration by location for impaired loans, advances

geographical location where the credit risk resides

57

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,188 1,127
41 816
(22) (794)
(73) -
(17) 39
1,117 1,188
0.04% 0.04%
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
104, 1,123
12 65
1,117 1,188
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,105 1,123
12 65
1,117 1,188
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
12 65
1,105 1,123
1,117 1,188

&ndncing is based on the
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8. Loans, advances and financingcontinued)

(iX) Movements in gross loans, advances and finangn

x)

At 1 January 2019

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 20:

Movements in allowance for credit loss on loangdvances and financing

At 1 January 2019

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Transfer to Stage 3

Changes due to change in credit risk
Changes in model/risk parameter
Write-offs

Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

At 1 January 2018

New assets originated

Assets derecognised or repaid
Transfer to Stage 1

Transfer to Stage 2

Changes due to change in credit risk
Changes in model/risk parameter
Foreign exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018

58
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
2,758,952 276,715 1,188 3,036,855
1,506,969 113,636 9 1,620,614
(1,417,642) (282,459) (1) (1,700,102)
1,868 (1,847) (21) -
(678,415) 678,415 - -
- (32) 32 -
- - (73) (73)
(57) - (17) (74)
2,171,675 784,428 1,117 2,957,220
3,212,407 663 1,127 3,214,197
991,012 28,629 816 1,020,457
(1,149,648) (47,306) (794) (1,197,748)
75 (75) - -
(294,804) 294,804 - -
(90) - 39 (51)
2,758,95; 276,71! 1,18¢ 3,036,85!
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
15,954 11,640 1,188 28,782
21,171 1,859 9 23,039
(10,151) (13,771) Q) (23,923)
489 (468) (21) -
(3,064) 3,064 - -
- 1) 1 -
2,923 12,085 31 15,039
195 (304) - (109)
- - (73) (73)
(57) - (17) (74)
27,460 14,104 1,117 42,681
19,336 28 1,127 20,491
5,293 302 816 6,411
(2,128) (1,902) (794) (4,824)
1 @) - -
(4,038) 4,038 - -
(3,780) 8,791 - 5,011
1,360 384 - 1,744
(90) - 39 (51)
15,954 11,640 1,188 28,782
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9. Derivative financial assets/liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots
- Currency swaps

Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities @88)

Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots
- Currency swaps

Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities @88)

10. Other assets

Interest receivable
Deposits
Other receivables and prepayments

11. Statutory deposits with Bank Negara Malaysia

59

2019
Contract/
Nominal value Assets Liabilities
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
235,776 1,148 399
322,939 866 2,240
558,715 2,014 2,639
2018
Contract/
Nominal value Assets Liabilities
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
528,130 1,623 1,600
1,167,456 6,532 6,186
1,695,586 8,155 7,786
2019 2018
RM’'000 RM’000
12,808 11,657
1,742 1,785
1,430 1,769
15,980 15,211

The non-interest bearing statutory deposits are mairdawi¢h Bank Negara Malaysia in compliance
with Section 26(2)(c) and Section 26(3) of the Central Bahklalaysia Act, 2009 to satisfy the Statutory
Reserve Requirement, the amount of which is determineddbasea set percentage of total eligible

liabilities.
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13.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabiliti€sontinued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

The Bank leases a number of branch and office premises. Biseddypically run for a period of 2 to 6
years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. Gimedeases, rentals are renegotiated every
three years in accordance with the market thengiliey.

The Bank also leases a few motor vehicles, equipment and affsets. The leases typically run for a
period of 3 to 5 years, with an option to renewltese after that date.

For certain equipment with contract terms of one to five getire Bank classified these leases as short-
term and/or leases of low-value items. The Bank has eleagtbmrecognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for these leases. Previously, thesedsavere classified as operating leases under MERS

Significant judgements and assumptions in relatioleases

The Bank assesses at lease commencement by applying Gagbifudgement whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the extension options. The Bank corssial facts and circumstances including its
past practice and any cost that will be incurred to changeadiset if an option to extend is not taken, to
help it determines the lease term.

The Bank also applied judgement and assumptions in detemgnihe incremental borrowing rate of the
respective leases. The Bank first determines the closedahbie borrowing rates before using significant
judgement to determine the adjustments required to refleetterm, security, value or economic
environment of the respective leases.

Lease liabilities

2019
RM’000

Lease liabilities 9,918

The maturity profile of the Bank’s lease liabilities based wndiscounted contractual payments is as
follows:

2019

RM’000
Less than 1 month 397
Between 1 to 3 months 795
Between 3 months to 1 year 3,191
Between 1 to 5 years 6,040

10,423
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14. Intangible asset

Cost
At 1 January/31 December

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January/31 December

Net carrying amount
At 1 January/31 December

15. Deferred tax assets

At 1 January

Recognised in profit or loss (Note 29)
Recognised in equity

At 31 December

64

Admission Fee

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
2,600 2,600
2,600 2,600
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
10,298 6,048
4,548 5,079
(2,941) (829)
11,905 10,298

The components and movements of deferred tax assets aifididisliuring the financial year are as

follows:-

Property and equipment
Fair value reserve
Allowance for credit loss
Provisions

Total

Property and equipment
Fair value reserve
Allowance for credit loss
Provisions

Total

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Recognised in  Recognised At 31
At 1 January profit or loss in December
2019 (Note 29) equity 2019
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
762 (608) - 154
(653) - (2,941) (3,594)
4,982 3,123 - 8,105
5,207 2,033 - 7,240
10,298 4,548 (2,941) 11,905
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Recognised in  Recognised At 31
At 1 January profit or loss in December
2018 (Note 29) equity 2018
RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
(108) 870 - 762
176 - (829) (653)
- 4,982 - 4,982
5,980 (773) - 5,207
6,048 5,079 (829) 10,298
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16.

17.

18.

Deposits from customers

() By type of deposits

Demand deposits
Fixed deposits

Savings deposits
Money market deposits
Others

(i) By type of customer

Business enterprises
Individuals

Foreign entities
Others

(ii) By maturity structure of term deposits

Due within six months
More than six months to one year

Deposits and placements of banks and other finaial institutions

Licensed Malaysian banks
Licensed investment banks
Licensed Islamic banks
Other financial institutions
Foreign banks

Other liabilities

Interest payable
Other payables and accruals

65

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,036,648 623,220
891,225 1,025,739
121,515 118,052
808,094 719,447

10,874 16,109
2,868,356 2,502,567
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,312,581 1,156,312
334,556 251,923
1,220,908 1,093,295
311 1,037
2,868,356 2,502,567
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,427,651 1,517,854
271,668 227,332
1,699,319 1,745,186
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
26,878 154,526
50,528 50,329
4,776 2,851
182,655 166,114
668,877 756,222
933,714 1,130,042
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
20,189 15,015
61,079 56,337
81,268 71,352
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19. Provision for commitments and contingencies

20.

21.

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2019 2,785 1,761 - 4,546
New assets originated 2,840 508 - 3,348
Assets derecognised or repaid (2,042) (706) - (2,748)
Transfer to Stage 1 291 (291) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (1,101) 1,101 - -
Changes due to change in credit risk 1,228 546 - 1,774
Changes in model/risk parameter 45 42 - 87
Foreign exchange adjustments (3) - - (3)
At 31 December 2019 4,043 2,961 - 7,004
At 1 January 2018 7,896 14 - 7,910
New assets originated 969 216 - 1,185
Assets derecognised or repaid (2,455) (330) - (2,785)
Transfer to Stage 1 2 (2) - -
Transfer to Stage 2 (2,525) 2,525 - -
Changes due to change in credit risk 161 (32) - 129
Changes in model/risk parameter (1,265) (630) - (1,895)
Foreign exchange adjustments 2 - - 2
At 31 December 20: 2,78¢ 1,761 - 4,54¢

Provision for taxation

Provision for taxation in 2019 included tax payable by thenlBa branch, Industrial and Commercial

Bank of China (Malaysia) Berhad, Labuan International Brarwhere the Branch is subject to tax at 3%
of the chargeable profit pursuant to Section 4(1) of the lasbBusiness Activity Tax Act, 1990 for the

year of assessment 2020.

Share capital
Number of ordinary

Amount
shares
2019 2018 2019 2018
'000 '000 RM’000 RM’000

Ordinary Shares
Issued and fully paid

At 1 January/31 December 832,609 832,609 832,609 832,609
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22.

23.

Reserves
(&) Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve captures theigorexchange currency translation
differences in respect of Labuan branch operations.
(b) Fair value reserve
Fair value reserve captures the fair value adjustment @anéiial investments which are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, its epoading effect on deferred tax and
allowance for credit loss arising on financial investmemtsasured at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The reserve is non-distributaldecamulative fair value adjustments will
be reversed to profit or loss upon disposal ofabeets.
(c) Regulatory reserve
The regulatory reserve is maintained by the Bank as an additcredit risk absorbant in excess of
the requirement of accounting standards. The reserve istaiaed in line with the requirements of
Bank Negara Malaysia. An amount of RM17.644 million (2018VK.644 million) from the
retained earnings as of 31 December 2019 has leserved for this purpose.
(d) Retained earnings
The Finance Act 2007 introduced the single tier tax systeth &ffect from 1 January 2008. Under
this system, tax on a company’s profits is a final tax anddéinids are tax exempt in the hands of
shareholders.
Interest income
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Loans, advances and financing:
- Interest income other than from impaired loans 143 140,339
Money at call and deposits and placements witmfire institutions 27,584 36,942
Financial investments measured at fair value thnaatber
comprehensive income 24,182 20,226
Financial investments measured at amortised cost 5,257 4,418
201,196 201,925
Interest expense
Deposits and placements of banks and other finbinsitutions (34,353) (25,101)
Deposits from customers (48,883) (53,023)
Others (3) (270)

(83,239) (78,394)

Net interest income 117,957 123,531
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23.

24.

25.

Interest income(continued)

68

The amounts reported above include interest income andchegpealculated using the effective interest

rate method that relate to the following:-

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at fair value througéroth
comprehensive income

Financial assets not at fair value through prafiiogs

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Net fee income

Fee income:

- Commission

- Service charges and fees

- Loan processing fees

- Syndication fee

- Guarantee fees

- Commitment fees

- Other loan related fee income
- Other fee income

Fee expense:
- Brokerage fees
- Other fee expense

Net fee income

Net trading income

Net gains from dealing in foreign exchange

Net (losses)/gains arising from derivative trading

Net unrealised revaluation losses in foreign exgkan
Net unrealised (losses)/gains arising from denveatiading

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000

177,014 181,699

24,182 20,226

201,196 201,925

,189) (78,394)
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
44 52
2,822 2,352
541 7,209
2,33¢ 3,66:
3,920 4,862
1,110 1,037
111 3,301
384 3,705
11,268 26,181
(120) (95
(258) (426
(378) (521)
10,890 25,660
2019 2018
RM’'000 RM’000

26,670 22,297

6,609) 10,211
(382) (146)
(994) 190

18,595 32,552
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26. Other operating expenses

2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Personnel costs:
- Salaries, allowance and bonuses (excluding Directemuneration) 41,302 46,101
- Directors’ remuneration (Note 31(c)) 2,050 1,987
- Pension fund contributions 4,270 4,564
- Other staff costs 5,942 6,716
Promotion and marketing related expenses:
- Advertising and promotion 421 469
- Others 528 547
Establishment costs:
- Depreciation of property and equipment 3,521 3,793
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4,418 -
- Interest expense on lease liabilities 405 -
- Rental of premises, motor vehicles, equipmentathdrs - 5,698
- Expenses relating to short-term leases 30 -
- Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 43 -
- Others 2,151 1,785
Administrative expenses:
- Auditors’ remuneration
« statutory audit fees 270 270
« audit related services 108 458
- Professional fet 40z 721
- Licence fee 306 311
- Membership fee 321 240
- Property and equipment written off - 44
- Loss on disposal of property and equipment - 1
- Others 6,654 7,220
73,142 80,925
27. Allowance for impairment on loans, advances anfinancing
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Allowance for/(Write-back of) credit loss
- Loans, advances and financing 14,046 8,342
- Provision for commitments and contingencies 2,461 (3,366)
16,507 4,976
28. Allowance for impairment on other financial assts
2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
(Write-back of)/Allowance for credit loss
- Cash and short-term funds (27) 105
- Deposits and placements with banks and othendilahinstitutions (2) (28)
- Financial investments measured at fair valueufihoother
comprehensive income 849 93
- Financial investments measured at amortised cost - 93

82( 268
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29.

30.

Tax expense

Current tax expense

- Current financial year
- Overprovision in prior year

Total current tax recognised in profit or loss

Deferred taxation

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total deferred tax recognised in profit or loss {@Nd5)

Reconciliation of tax expense

Profit before taxation

Income tax using Malaysian tax rate @ 24%

Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses

Effect of tax rate in a different jurisdicti
Overprovision of income tax expense in prior year

Tax expense

Basic earnings per ordinary share

70
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
17,273 26,825
(5,973) (4,915)
1D,30 21,910
,548) (5,079)
(4,548) (5,079)
6,752 16,831
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
57,075 95,649
13,698 22,956
1,442 3,393
(2,415 (4,603
978) (4,915)
6,752 16,831

The basic earnings per ordinary share has been calculased lba the profit attributable to equity holder
of the Bank of RM50,323,000 (2018: RM78,818,000) and weidhaverage number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year of 832,609,000 (2082,®09,000).
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31. Significant related party transactions and balanes

(&) The significant transactions of the Bank with itdding company and other related entities are as

follows:-
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Holding Related Holding Related
company companies company companies
Income
Interest income
- Deposits and placements with banks
and other financial institutions 2,284 2,357 2,906 3,150
Expenses
Interest expense
- Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions (20,549) - (14,878) (450)
Other operating expenses
- Other charges (12) - (69) -
- Software licence fee (56) - (53) -

(b) The significant outstanding balances of the Bank with itédimy company and other related
entities are as follows:-

2019 2018

RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Holding Related Holding Related
company companies company companies

Amount due from

- Cash and short-term funds 149,964 1,297 440,358 3,363

- Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions - - 12,467 -
- Other assets 171 - 75 -

Amount due to
- Deposits and placements of banks

and other financial institutions (668,612) - (754,290) -
- Other liabilities (3,178) - (4,040) -
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31. Significant related party transactions and balanes(continued)

All transactions of the Bank with its related parties are enadthe ordinary course of business and on
substantially the same terms, including interegs;awith third parties.

There is no amount outstanding from key managemensonnel as at year end.
(c) Key management personnel compensation

The remuneration of key management personnel, being thebersnof the Board of Directors of
the Bank, during the financial year are shown below

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
Executive Director and CEO
Mr Wang Qiang
- Salaries 914 934
- Bonus 687 661
- Other allowances 6 g
1,607 1,601
Non-Executive Directors’ fees
YBhg Dato’ Leong Khee Seong 57 130
Mr Ong Ah Tin @ Ong Chee Kwee 57 129
Mr Chin Chee Kong 127 127
Mr Ng Lip Yong 114 -
Ms Sum Leng Kuang 88 -
443 386
2,050 1,987
Note 26 Note 26

32. Credit exposures to connected parties

The credit exposures of the Bank to connected parties, asedeby BNM’s “Guidelines on Credit
Transactions and Exposures with Connected Pawdiesas follows:-

2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Aggregate value of outstanding credit exposureotmected parties 173,958 273,694
As a percentage of total credit exposures 3.09% 5.26%

Percentage of outstanding credit exposures to aed@arties which
are non-performing or in default 0% 0%
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33. Commitments and contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various domemts and incurs certain contingent

liabilities with legal recourse to its customers. No matktosses are anticipated as a result of these
transactions.

The commitments and contingencies constitute thewng:-

2019
Positive Value Credit Risk-
Principal of Derivative  Equivalent Weighted
Amount Contracts * Amount * Assets *
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000
Credit-related exposures
Direct credit substitutes 73,674 - 73,674 14,735
Transaction-related contingent items 528,489 - 264,244 186,131
Short term self-liquidating trade-related
contingencies 127,550 - 25,510 21,238
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of:
- Exceeding one year 206,672 - 103,336 69,814
- Not exceeding one year 1,110,377 - 222,076 200,122
Unutilised credit card line 40,98« - 8,197 6,14¢
Derivative financial contracts
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- Less than one year 558,715 2,014 6,643 2,741
Total 2,646,461 2,014 703,680 500,929
Note 9

A The foreign exchange related contracts are off-balancet siegivative financial instruments whose
values change in response to changes in prices or ratesgsdoreign exchange rates and interest
rates) of the underlying instruments. The underlying ggactamounts of these derivative financial
instruments and their corresponding gross positive faiues (derivative financial assets) as at
respective reporting dates are as shown above.

* The credit equivalent and risk-weighted amounts are coetpusing credit conversion factors and
risk-weighting rules as per BNM guidelines. The credit cemsion factors and risk-weighting rules
are based on guidelines of the revised Capital Adequacy é&mamk on the Standardised
Approach.
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33. Commitments and contingenciegcontinued)

2018
Positive Value Credit Risk-
Principal of Derivative  Equivalent Weighted
Amount Contracts » Amount * Assets *
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Credit-related exposures
Direct credit substitutes 74,835 - 74,835 14,967
Transaction-related contingent items 564,904 - 282,452 201,988
Short term self-liquidating trade-related
contingencies 154,257 - 30,851 20,153
Other commitments, such as formal standby
facilities and credit lines, with an original
maturity of:
- Exceeding one year 526,420 - 263,210 214,946
- Not exceeding one year 1,028,727 - 205,746 188,852
Unutilised credit card lines 40,105 - 8,021 6,015
Derivative financial contracts
Foreign exchange related contracts:
- Less than one year 1,695,586 8,155 29,636 12,873
Total 4,084,83. 8,15¢ 894,75: 659,79:-
Note 9

A The foreign exchange related contracts are off-balancet siegivative financial instruments whose
values change in response to changes in prices or ratesgsdoreign exchange rates and interest
rates) of the underlying instruments. The underlying ggactamounts of these derivative financial
instruments and their corresponding gross positive faiues (derivative financial assets) as at
respective reporting dates are as shown above.

* The credit equivalent and risk-weighted amounts are coetpusing credit conversion factors and
risk-weighting rules as per BNM guidelines. The credit cemrsion factors and risk-weighting rules
are based on guidelines of the revised Capital Adequacy é&rank on the Standardised
Approach.
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34. Capital adequacy

The total risk-weighted assets of the Bank are adetpbased on the following approaches:-

(i) Standardised Approach for Credit risk;
(i) Standardised Approach for Market risk;
(iii) Basic Indicator Approach for Operationalkis

The capital adequacy ratios of the Bank are andlgsefollows:-

2019 2018
RM'000 RM'000
Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") Capital
Paid-up share capital 832,609 832,609
Retained earnings 304,399 254,076
Regulatory reserve 17,644 17,644
Foreign currency translation reserve (261) (295)
Unrealised gains on financial investments measatéd/OCI 9,841 1,299
1,164,232 1,105,333
Less: Regulatory adjustments applied in calculatb@ET1 Capital
- Deferred tax assets (11,905) (10,299
- 55% cumulative gains of financial intreents measured at FVO[CI (5,412) (714
- Regulatory reserve attributable to madvances and financing (17,644) (17,644
(34,961 (28,656
Total CET1 Capital 1,129,271 1,076,677
Tier 2 Capital
Allowance for credit loss 25,223 27,684
Regulatory reserve 17,644 17,644
Total Tier 2 Capital 42,867 45,328
Total Capital 1,172,138 1,122,005
CET1 capital ratio 29.937% 27.370%
Tier 1 capital ratio 29.937% 27.370%
Total capital ratio 31.073% 28.523%
Breakdown of gross risk-weighted assets (“RWA”"}lie various categories of risk-weights:-
2019 2018
Risk-weighted Risk-weighted
Principal Assets Principal Assets
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
Total RWA for credit risk 5,800,536 3,429,422 5,733,813 3,626,253
Total RWA for market risk - 14,229 - 1,973
Total RWA for operational risk - 328,538 - 305,504
5,800,536 3,772,189 5,733,813 3,933,730
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35.

Financial Instruments

35.1 Categories of financial instruments

76

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruteest the end of the reporting period

categorised as follows:-

(a) Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")

(b) Amortised Cost (“AC")

(c) Fair value through other comprehensive inconk&/ QCI")

2019
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions

Financial investments measured at FVOCI

Financial investments measured at
amortised cost
Loans, advances and financing
Derivative financial assets
Other asse
Statutory deposits with
Bank Negara Malaysia

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of banks
and other financial institutions

Derivative financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Provision for commitments and
contingencies

Total financial liabilities

Carrying
Amount AC FVTPL FVOCI
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
1,177,767 1,177,767 - -
171,563 171,563 - -
594,788 - - 594,788
117,163 117,163 - -
2,914,539 2,914,539 - -
2,014 - 2,014 -
15,98( 15,98( - -
41,317 41,317 - -
5,035,131 4,438,329 2,014 594,788
2,868,356 2,868,356 - -
933,714 933,714 - -
2,639 - 2,639 -
81,268 81,268 - -
7,004 7,004 - -
3,892,981 3,890,342 2,639 -
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35.

Financial Instruments (continued)

35.1 Categories of financial instrumentgcontinued)

2018
Financial assets
Cash and short-term funds

Deposits and placements with banks

and other financial institutions

Financial investments measured at FVOCI
Financial investments measured at

amortised cost
Loans, advances and financing
Derivative financial assets
Other assets
Statutory deposits with

Bank Negara Malaysia

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements of ba
and other financial institutions

Derivative financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Provision for commitments and
contingencies

Total financial liabilities

77

Carrying
Amount AC FVTPL FVOCI
RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
1,017,586 1,017,586 - -
12,467 12,467 - -
589,715 - - 589,715
117,269 117,269 - -
3,008,073 3,008,073 - -
8,155 - 8,155 -
15,211 15,211 - -
42,602 42,602 - -
4,811,078 4,213,208 8,155 589,715
2,502,567 2,502,567 - -
1,130,042 1,130,042 - -
7,786 - 7,786 -
71,352 71,352 - -
4,546 4,546 - -
3,716,293 3,708,507 7,786 -
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35.

35.2

Financial Instruments (continued)

Net gains and losses arising from financial instrurants

Net gains/(losses) arising on:
Fair value through profit or loss

Financial investments at fair value through ott@nprehensive income:

- interest income from financial investments at falue through other
comprehensive income

- amortisation of premium recognised in profit os$

- recognised in other comprehensive income

Financial investments at amortised cost

- interest income from financial investments at #imed cost

- (amortisation of premium)/accretion of discoustagnised in profit
or loss

Other financial assets at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Net loss on impairment on financial instrume

- financial assets at amortised cost

- financial assets at fair value through other cadhpnsive income
- provision for commitment and contingencies

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
18,595 32,552
24,726 20,624
(544) (398)
9,391 1,947
5,363 3,676
(106) 742
171,757 177,281
(83,239) (78,394)
(14,017) (8,512
(849) (93
(2,461) 3,36
(17,327) (5,239)
128,616 152,791

78
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35.3 Fair value information

Recognised financial instruments

The methods and assumptions used in estimatinigithealues of financial instruments are as follows

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Cash and short-term funds/Deposits and placements with b&s and other financial
institutions

For cash and short-term funds and deposits and placemetits banks and other financial
institutions including interest-earning deposits, therydag amounts are a reasonable estimate of
the fair values because of their short-term nafieses than one year) and limited credit risk.

Financial investments
Fair values of investment securities are estimbeesid on broker/dealer price quotation.
Loans, advances and financing

The fair values of fixed rate loans with remaining maturifyess than one year and variable rate
loans are estimated to approximate their carrying valuesfiked rate loans with maturity of more
thar one year the fair values are estimate basel on expecte future casl flows of contractue
instalment payments and discounted at prevailing rateseatespective reporting dates offered for
similar loans. In respect of impaired loans, the fair valaes deemed to approximate the carrying
values, net of individual assessment impairmentahce.

Deposits from customers

The fair values of demand deposits and saving deposits imgtwithin a short period of time are
the amounts payable on demand. Fair values of fixed depuositsring within a year are estimated
to approximate their carrying amounts. For deposits withuniy exceeding one year, the fair
values are estimated using discounted cash flows based wetmates at the respective reporting
dates for similar products and maturity.

Deposits and placements of banks and other finaial institutions

The fair values of non-interest bearing deposits are equantounts payable on demand. For
deposits with maturity exceeding one year, fair values atenated by discounting the estimated
future cash flows based on market rates at the respectiostiregp dates for deposits with similar
maturity.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.3 Fair value information (continued)

Recognised financial instrumentgcontinued)

Valuation of financial instruments (continued)

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair vaiierarchy that reflects the significance of
the inputs used in making the measurements:-

e Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active maf@ée identical financial assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the mesamant date.

e Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inpittseredirectly (as prices) or indirectly
(derived from prices). This category includes instrumemisied using: quoted prices for identical or
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similestruments in markets that are considered
less than active; or other valuation techniques where giliitant inputs are directly observable
from market data.

e Level 3: Valuation techniques of financial assets and liigs using significant unobservable inputs.
This category includes all instruments where the valuatemihnique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a satifeEfect on instrument’s valuation. This
categor include: instrument thai are valuec base: on quotec prices for similar instrument where
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptionseayained to reflect differences between the
instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitibsitt are traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. Availgbdf observable market prices and model

inputs reduces the need for management judgement and #stineend also reduces the uncertainty

associated with determination of fair values. Availagilif observable market prices and inputs varies
depending on the products and markets and is prone to chéagesl on specific events and general
conditions in the financial markets.

The determination of fair value for financial assets andaficial liabilities for which there is no
observable market price requires the use of valuation iquaks. For financial instruments that trade
infrequently and have little price transparency, fair ais less objective, and requires varying degrees
of judgement depending on liquidity, concentration, utaiaty of market factors, pricing assumptions
and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

Valuation techniques used to calculate fair values inckataparisons with similar financial instruments
for which market observable prices exist, discounted clst &nalysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used in the market. The tilbgof valuation techniques is to arrive at
fair value determination that reflects the price of the ficial instrument at the reporting date, that would
have been determined by market participants aetimgm’s length.

Transfer between fair value hierarchy
There has been no transfer in any levels of the fair valuemgltine financial year (2018: no transfer in
either directions).
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk management
(a) Introduction and overview
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors establishes the Bank’s risk appetitd risk principles. The Board Risk
Management Committee (“BRMC?") is the principal board corted that oversees the Bank’s risk
management. It reviews the Bank’s overall risk managenraméwork and major risk policies. The
BRMC is supported by Senior Management Committee, ManageRiek Management Committee
(“MRMC"), various functional committees at managerievel and Risk Management Department.

MRMC has been established for active Senior Managementsigvey deliberating on policies,
profiles and activities pertaining to integrated risk mgaraent. All major risk policies have to be
deliberated at relevant functional management commiiieetiding MRMC) prior to escalation to
BRMC and Board of Directors for approval.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established toegthid risk governance activities that
cover identification, measurement, assessment, momgornd controlling of risks. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularlyittthe evolving operating environment
and requirements. The Bank, through its training, commatiwas, standards and procedures, aims
to develoy a disciplinec anc constructivi contro environmen' in which all employee understan
their roles and obligations.

The Board Audit Committee, supported by Internal Audit Dexp@nt, provides an independent
assessment of the adequacy and reliability of the risk m@magt processes and system of internal
controls, and compliance with risk policies andutatpry requirements.

The Bank has exposure to the following materids;ismong others, from financial instruments:-

e Credit Risk

e Liquidity Risk

e Market Risk

e Operational Risk

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank due toldeé of the Bank’s customers or
counterparties in meeting their contractual financialigdilons. The credit risk comes primarily
from the Bank’'s placements, direct lending, trade financeé funding activities. Credit exposures
are managed in a prudent manner and collaterals are takenewdrerequired as risk mitigation
measures. Periodic credit reviews are performed to assessntgoing quality of the Bank’s credit
portfolio, the impact of pertinent factors on the creditffecof the counterparties/customers and the
collaterals taken.

Management of credit

The Board of Directors has delegated the responsibilityHeroversight of credit risk to the Credit
Committee and MRMC. These committees are supertige¢de Senior Management Committee.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
The functions of the Credit Committee are as folow

e Ensuring prudent underwriting standards that are comgistéh the Bank’s risk appetite and
lending direction

e Deliberation of lending propositions and crediated requests
Reviewing credit exposures periodically to ensurgpnt and effective credit risk management

The functions of the MRMC are as follows:-

e Reviewing and tracking of the Bank’s credit riskmagement profile
e Reviewing and deliberation of credit policies
e Reviewing and tracking of the credit risk appetitehe Bank

The Bank employs a credit grading system as a tool for deténgnithe credit risk profile of
borrowers/counterparties using appropriate form of szands. The credit grades are used as a basis
to support the underwriting of credit.

ECL Methodology

MFRS 9 requires banks to determine the quantified amounkpéeted credit losses (“ECL") on a
probability-weighted basis as the difference between démhkis that are due to the Bank in
accordance with the contractual terms of financial asseddlze cash flows that the Bank expects to
receive.

Probability of Default (“PD”) - This is an estimate of the déikhood of a borrower/counterparty
defaulting on its financial obligation.

Loss given Default (“LGD") - This is an estimate of the Bank’spectation of the extent of loss on a
defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterpartye typd seniority of claim and availability
of collateral or other credit support.

Exposure at Default (‘EAD”) - This is an estimate of the exp@sat a future default date, taking
into account expected change in the exposure after the trepatate, including repayments of
principal and interest and expected drawdown onncitied facilities.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
ECL Measurement
ECL are generally measured based on the risk of default ower af three different stages,
depending on whether the credit risk of the borrower/copatey has increased significantly since
initial recognition. Below are the key categories of stgguriteria for ECL measurement under

MFRS 9:-

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on ialtirecognition is to be classified as
“Stage 1" and its credit risk is to be continuousignitored by the Bank.

If a significant increase in credit risk since initial recdtipn is identified, the financial
instrument will be moved to “Stage 2" but it is ryet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the fingadnstrument is then moved to “Stage

3"

Loss allowance Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

updated at eact

ECL criterion Performing Credit exposure that show€redit Impaired Exposure
credit assets  significant increase in or non-performing credit
with 12-month credit risk (“SICR”) since assets
ECL initial recognition or under-

performing credit assets

Criteria i) Day Past Du i) Watch List account i) DPD=>90 days
(“DPD”) <=30 ii) DPD>30 days; <90 day ii) Credit-impaired
days iii) Significant downgrade exposure

in credit rating

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

Improvement Deterioration

Upon implementation of the ECL Model, the provision/impaént for the credit exposures of the
Bank is equivalent to 12-Month ECL or Lifetime ECL, deperglion the category of the stages as
tabulated above, which are to be computed in theWong manner:-

Stage 1: 12-month ECL = PiT 12-Month PD x LGD x EAD
Stage 2:  Lifetime ECL = Lifetime PD x LGD x EAD
Stage 3:  Lifetime ECL = EAD - Expected Discounted Cash Flbws

* Expected Discounted Cash Flows are computed basedlividual impairment
assessment as stipulated in the Bank’s policy &ediacorporating forward-looking
consideration:
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

ECL Measurement(continued)

86

The Bank’s credit grading system comprises 20 grading $ef@l instruments under not impaired
category and 1 grading level for instruments under impaicagegory. The Grade 1-12 is
representative of lower assessed probability of defaulth wather classifications reflecting

progressively higher credit risk.

Grading Level
Grade 1-12

Grade 13-20
Grade 21

Credit Quality Analysis

2019
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM’000 RM’000
Loans, Advances and Financing to Corpor
- Grade 1-12 1,325,186 555,702 - 1,880,888
- Grade 13-20 734,406 228,686 - 963,092
- Grade 21 - - 1,105 1,105

2,059,592 784,388 1,105 2,845,085
Allowance for credit loss (26,962) (14,104) (1,105) (42,171)
Carrying Amount 2,032,630 770,284 - 2,802,914
Loans, Advances and Financing to Banks *
- Grade 1-12 1,349,430 - - 1,349,430
- Grade 13-20 - - - -
- Grade 21 - - - -
1,349,430 - - 1,349,430

Allowance for credit loss (100) - - (100)
Carrying Amount 1,349,330 - - 1,349,330
Loans, Advances and Financing to Retails
- Retails 112,083 40 12 112,135

112,083 40 12 112,135
Allowance for credit loss (498) - (12) (510)
Carrying Amount 111,585 40 - 111,625
Financial Investments
- Grade 1-12 651,021 - - 651,021
- Grade 13-20 61,023 - - 61,023
- Grade 21 - - - -

712,044 - - 712,044
Allowance for credit loss (1,635) - - (1,635)
Carrying Amount 710,409 - - 710,409
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Credit Quality Analysis (continued)
2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM’000
Loans, Advances and Financing to Corporates

- Grade 1-12 2,232,373 104,441 - 2,336,814
- Grade 13-20 428,189 172,240 - 600,429
- Grade 21 - - 1,123 1,123
2,660,562 276,681 1,123 2,938,366
Allowance for credit loss (15,100) (11,639) (1,123) (27,862)
Carrying Amount 2,645,462 265,042 - 2,910,504

Loans, Advances and Financing to Banks *

- Grade 1-12 1,030,186 - - 1,030,186
- Grade 13-20 - - - -
- Grade 21 - - - -
1,030,186 - - 1,030,186
Allowance for credit los (133 - - (133
Carrying Amount 1,030,053 - - 1,030,053

Loans, Advances and Financing to Retails

- Retails 98,388 36 65 98,489

98,388 36 65 98,489
Allowance for credit loss (854) (1) (65) (920)
Carrying Amount 97,534 35 - 97,569

Financial Investments

- Grade 1-12 707,077 - - 707,077
- Grade 13-20 - - - -
- Grade 21 - - - -
707,077 - - 707,077
Allowance for credit loss (786) - - (786)
Carrying Amount 706,291 - - 706,291

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and deposits an@mpiacts with banks and other financial
institutions.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk

The Bank’s credit exposure is to be categorised under StageeRher one of the following
guantitative or qualitative criteria has been met:-

Quantitative Criteria
e The obligor has breached its contractual repayment scheahd is past due for more than 30
days (but shorter than 90 day

e The obligor’s credit grading has deteriorated more thard#éfaned threshold as compared to the
original credit grading during initial recognition.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Significant Increase in Credit Risk(continued)

Qualitative Criteria

e |If a credit exposure meets any non-mandatory triggers (dmetk in the Bank’s policy
documents) to the extent that warrants its classificatisn\atch List Exposure as per the
criteria set.

Forward looking information

Both the assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL hawerporated forward looking
information. The Bank has performed historical analysig &entified the key macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs") that could cause material impacts to thd_.E€the Bank's credit portfolios. The
identified MEFs (variables) have been actively monitored aonsidered by the Bank in its major
business planning processes and regular risk assessmeiitiescranging from periodic credit
reviews, environmental screening and impacts assesswieict) would be deliberated in the regular
meetings at management level and Board level. The Banisretiethe publicly available economic
forecasts from reliable and reputable institutions suchAesld Bank, IMF, international credit
rating agencie anc researc institutions Exper judgemer will be appliec in forecastini the
macroeconomic factors if there is no forecasted daailable for the Bank for reference.

Macroeconomic Factors Assumptions

It is assumed that the state of economy in Malaysia may dpvigl three scenarios with the
probability weightage assigned to each macroeconsognario as follows:-

State of economy 2019 2018

Upside Scenario 20.00% 30.00%
Base Scenario 50.00% 40.00%
Downside Scenario 30.00% 30.00%

The adoption of the above probability weightage reflectsBlank’s view of the state of economy for
the next 12 months whereby the on-going growth momentum ofaj&é| economy may be
subjected to the neutralisation of external and internallehges arising from limited room for fiscal
and monetary policy flexibility (in Malaysia) as well as wmntainty of trade policies of major
economies and on-going geo-political events that may afiee growth prospects of the world
economy.

Loss Given Default

Given the lack of historical loss experience, the Bank hasred to adopt the highest available
LGDs that are sourced directly from major internationablireating agencies, Parent Bank and local
peer banks. For corporate portfolio, the Bank adopts thecpieed LGD of 45% for unsecured
senior claims on corporates as stated in BNM's Capital Adegu-ramework if the LGD derived
from the aforementioned approach is lower than 45%, in ortermitigate the risk of
underestimation of ECL.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Credit Risk Exposure for ECL
The loss allowance recognised may be impacteddigraas described below:-

e Transfers between Stage 1 to Stage 2 or 3 due to financialiments experiencing significant
increases in credit risk or becoming credit impaired dutheyperiod which require adoption of
lifetime ECL instead of 12-month ECL;

e Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in valuesfas&Ds, EADs, and LGDs
during the period after considering the review @vailing MEFs;

e Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changeg meaghodels and assumptions, if any.

The changes in the loss allowance between the beginningheneind of the reporting period are as
disclosed under Note 8(x) to the financial statet:en

Exposure at Default

EAD is a credit exposure (on and off-balance sheet) thatpeeted to be outstanding if the default
is to occul ovel the nexi 12 months (for 12-montt EAD). For undrawr credit exposure it would
include an estimate of future drawdown by way of applying liggple credit conversion factors
(“CCF") (the percentage of undrawn limit being drawn at tineet of default). Similarly, CCF will be
applied to other off-balance sheet credit exposures (sadBamk Guarantee) for EAD estimation.
The CCF to be used for ECL purposes will be based on the samea€@é&opted under BNM Policy
Document on Capital Adequacy Framework (BaseRisk Weighted Assets).

Definition of Default

A credit exposure is to be classified as default/credit imgaexposure and is to be categorised
under Stage 3 if there is occurrence of mandatagdr(s) for loan impairment, as follows:-

e Quantitatively, a credit exposure is to be classified asulefor impaired exposure when the
obligor has breached its contractual repaymentcsdbeeand is past due for 90 days or more.

e Qualitatively, a credit exposure is to be classified as uléfar impaired exposure if it meets any
of the mandatory triggers as stipulated in the Baphlicy.

Individual assessment is required for an impaired loanividdally assessed expected credit loss is
required to be provided if the recoverable amount of the laaset is less than its net carrying
amount. Recoverable amount is the present value of the astiliuture cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate or at the current iegtrate if it carries variable interest rate. In
addition to the requirements as stipulated in the Bank'&palocuments, the individual impairment

assessment shall consider forward-looking factors apjatep to the subject impaired credit

exposure/counterparty.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
Write-off policy
Clear write-off policy has been established to stipula dpproving authority, escalation process
and circumstances under which a loan can be written off. @digean impaired exposure will be

written off if the possibility of recovery is deemed highlplikely; i.e. all viable actions have been
exhausted.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

An analysis of the exposure to credit risk as atréspective reporting dates are shown below:-

2019 Gross Allowance Net
Carrying  for credit Carrying
Amount loss Amount

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Loans, Advances and Financing to Customers

Neither past due nor impair 2,955,94! (41,563 2,914,38

Past due but not impaired

- Less than one month 137 (1) 136

- Between one to two months 19 - 19

- Between two to three months 2 - 2
158 @ 157

Credit impaired 1,117 (1,117) -

2,057,220  (42,681) 2,914,539

Loans, Advances and Financing to Banks *
Neither past due nor impaired 1,349,430 (100) 1,349,330

Financial Investments
- measured at FVOCI
Neither past due nor impaired 594,788  (1,542) 593,246

- measured at Amortised Cost
Neither past due nor impaired 117,256 (93) 117,163

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and deposits ancemiacts with banks and other
financial institutions.

In addition to the above, the Bank had entered into lendimgroitments of RM1.36 billion. The
Bank had also issued financial guarantee contracts fortwifie maximum amount payable by
the Bank, assuming all guarantees are called ¢ig29.71 million.

The Bank holds collaterals against loans, advances anddimg to customers in the form of
fixed deposits, properties, guarantees and other sexsuristimates of fair value are based on
the value of collateral assessed at the time of tyggination and subsequent reviews.
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35.

Financial Instruments (continued)

35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Exposure to credit risk (continued)

2018

Loans, Advances and Financing to Customers

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired

- Less than one month

- Between one to two months
- Between two to three months

Credit impaired

Loans, Advances and Financing to Ban

Neither past due nor impaired

Financial Investments
- measured at FVOCI
Neither past due nor impaired

- measured at Amortised Cost
Neither past due nor impaired

91

Gross Allowance Net
Carrying  for credit Carrying
Amount loss Amount
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
3,035,458 (27,592) 3,007,866
174 2 172
34 @ 33
2 - 2
210 3) 207
1,187 (1,187) -
3,036,855 (28,782) 3,008,073
1,030,186 (133) 1,030,053
589,715 (693) 589,022
117,362 (93) 117,269

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and deposits ancemiacts with banks and other

financial institutions.

In addition to the above, the Bank had entered into lendimgroitments of RM1.60 billion. The
Bank had also issued financial guarantee contracts fortwifie maximum amount payable by
the Bank, assuming all guarantees are called d¢ig94.00 million.

The Bank holds collaterals against loans, advances anddimg to customers in the form of
fixed deposits, properties, guarantees and other sexsuristimates of fair value are based on
the value of collateral assessed at the time of tw@ination and subsequent reviews.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Concentration by sector and geographical location

92

The Bank monitors the concentration of credit risk by seetod by geographical distribution.
An analysis of the concentration of credit risk as at the eeipe reporting dates are shown

below:-

Loans, Advances and Financing to Banks *
Carrying amount

Concentration of credit risk based on sector
Financial services
Government and central bank

Concentration of credit risk based on geographicadbcation
Malaysie

East Asia

South East Asia

United States of America

Europe

Oceania

2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
1,349,330 1,030,053
1,161,511 654,032

187,819 376,021
1,349,330 1,030,053
1,143,07: 564,16t

6,036 31,261
138,814 391
55,352 428,612
2,537 4,653
3,513 970
1,349,330 1,030,053

* Consists of cash and short-term funds and deposits and npate with banks and other

financial institutions.

Concentration of credit risk by geographical distributifmm loans, advances and financing is

measured based on the location of the counterparty.

Concentration by sector and geographical distribution Ifans, advances and financing to
customers are disclosed under Notes 8(iv) and &{\the financial statements.
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(©)

(i) Concentration by sector and geographical locatioKicontinued)
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
Financial Investments
Carrying amount 711,951 706,984

Concentration of credit risk based on sector

Financial services 29,638 30,630
Government and central bank 500,781 490,617
Others 181,532 185,737

711,951 706,984

Concentration of credit risk based on geographicadbcation
Malaysia 711,951 706,984

Concentration of credit risk by geographical distributimn investment securities is measured
based on the location of the issuer.

(iii) Derivatives risk

The Bank’s derivatives position may give rise to credit riskthe event the counterparty
defaults. Control measures, such as limit setting and raong, are in place to manage the said
risk.

(iv) Settlement risk

Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of anitgrio honour its obligations to
deliver cash or other assets as contractually agreed. @ong&asures such as limit setting and
monitoring are in place to manage the said risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risks are the risks when the Bank fails to raise danto meet the present or future
obligations due to customers or counterparties. The pateliquidity risks of the Bank mainly
include customers’ premature and collective withdrawal&rdue repayments from counterparties,
mismatch gap in asset-liability maturity structared difficulties in realisation of assets.

Management of liquidity risk

The management of liquidity and funding has been carried imutompliance with regulatory
requirement as well as management requirement and thdsskel by the Assets and Liabilities
Committee (“ALCO"). The Bank maintains a strong liquiditpgition and constantly manages the
liquidity profile of its assets, liabilities and commitmsrio ensure that cash flow requirements are
appropriately satisfied and all obligations are amordingly.

The Bank has continuously been maintaining relationshifh wiew and existing depositors and
funding counterparties as it aims at growing thedfng base in a diversified manr
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(©)

(d)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Derivative financial instruments measured at their failues together with their corresponding
contract/notional amounts:-

Contract/Nominal Positive Negative
Amount Fair Value Fair Value
Up to Upto Up to
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
2019 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Trading derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots 235,776 1,148 399
- Currency swaps 322,939 866 2,240
558,715 2,014 2,639
Contract/Nominal Positive Negative
Amount Fair Value Fair Value
Up to Up to Up to
1 Year 1 Year 1 Year
2018 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Trading derivatives
Foreign exchange contracts
- Currency forwards and spots 528,130 1,623 1,600
- Currency swaps 1,167,456 6,532 6,186
1,695,586 8,155 7,786
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in narkariables, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates or prices of any form afrimeents.

Management of market risk

The Bank has established governance process for markehaskgement that covers the activities
of identifying, measuring, monitoring, controlling andpoeting market risks on timely basis. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and cotiteomarket risk exposures within

acceptable range according to the Bank’s risk agpet

The Bank does not engage in any proprietary trading a@s:itExposures arising from normal
banking activities (deposits, loans, foreign exchangs),ate managed accordingly to minimise and
preferably eliminate exposure to market risk. All risksatet to treasury activities will be managed
according to, and within the authorised risk limits
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that arises as a result ofements in the relative value of
currencies. The Bank is exposed to foreign exchange riskasrsactions that are denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency. The Bankimiges its exposure to foreign exchange
risk through hedging and limiting the net open tiosiof the foreign exchange portfolio.

The following tables summarise the assets, liabilities aetdopen position by currency as at the
reporting date, which are mainly in Ringgit Malaysia, Uditgtates Dollars and Chinese Renminbi.
Other currencies include Euro, Australia Dollars, Greaitaédr Pounds, Hong Kong Dollars,
Japanese Yen, Canadian Dollars, New Zealand DdalladsSingapore Dollars.

United
Malaysia States Chinese
Ringgit Dollars  Renminbi Others Total
2019 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 496,424 608,229 65,777 7,337 1,177,767
Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial
institutions 160,000 - - 11,563 171,563
Financial investments
measured at FVOCI 565,150 - 29,638 - 594,788
Financial investments
measured at amortised
cost 117,163 - - - 117,163
Loans, advances and
financing 1,779,050 945,381 21,118 168,9902,914,539
Derivative financial assets 1,362 261 391 - 2,014
Other assets 14,609 700 654 17 15,980
Statutory deposits with Bank
Negara Malaysia 41,317 - - - 41,317
Tax recoverable 5,850 - - - 5,850
Property and equipment 6,196 - - - 6,196
Right-of-use assets 9,936 - - - 9,936
Intangible asset - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 11,905 - - - 11,905

TOTAL ASSETS 3,208,962 1,554,571 117,578 187,907 5,069,018
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)

(d) Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

United
Malaysia States Chinese
Ringgit Dollars  Renminbi Others Total
2019 RM’000 RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,768,850 994,758 90,518 14,230 2,868,356
Deposits and placements of
banks and other financial
institutions 272,786 613,949 32,294 14,685 933,714
Derivative financial liabilities - 2,639 - - 2,639
Other liabilities 51,318 29,234 708 8 81,268
Lease liabilities 9,918 - - - 9,918
Provision for commitments
and contingencies 7,004 - - - 7,004
Provision for taxation 345 - - - 345
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,110,22. 1,640,58! 123,52( 28,92: 3,903,24.
United
Malaysia States Chinese
Ringgit Dollars  Renminbi Others Total
RM’000 RM’'000 RM’'000 RM’000 RM’000
2018
ASSETS
Cash and short-term funds 439,033 564,884 4,663 9,006 1,017,586

Deposits and placements with
banks and other financial

institutions - 12,467 - - 12,467
Financial investments
measured at FVOCI 559,085 - 30,630 - 589,715

Financial investments
measured at amortised

cost 117,269 - - - 117,269
Loans, advances and

financing 1,538,377 1,266,855 6,268 196,573 3,008,073
Derivative financial assets 6,687 - 1,468 - 8,155
Other assets 14,504 93 614 - 15,211
Statutory deposits with Bank

Negara Malaysia 42,602 - - - 42,602
Property and equipment 8,319 - - - 8,319
Intangible asset - - - - -
Deferred tax assets 10,298 - - - 10,298

TOTAL ASSETS 2,736,174 1,844,299 43,643 205,579 4,829,695
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35. Financial Instruments (continued)

35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(d) Market risk (continued)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

101

United
Malaysia States Chinese
Ringgit Dollars  Renminbi Others Total

2018 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’'000 RM'000
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,333,909 1,056,537 94,185 17,936 2,502,567
Deposits and placements of

banks and other financial

institutions 256,884 665,198 22,001 185,959 1,130,042
Derivative financial liabilities - 7,786 - - 7,786
Other liabilities 34,948 35,352 566 486 71,352
Provision for commitments

and contingencies 4,367 179 - - 4,546
Provision for taxation 7,376 - - - 7,376
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,637,484 1,765,052 116,752 204,381 3,723,669
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35. Financial Instruments(continued)
35.4 Financial risk managementcontinued)
(d) Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to an increase or dasesen market interest rates, assuming no
asymmetrical movement in yield curves and a comstaancial position, is as follows:-

(i) Sensitivity of projected net interest income

100 bps* Parallel 100 bps* Parallel
Increase Decrease
RM’000 RM’000
At 31 December 2019 13,289 (13)289
At 31 December 2018 11,776 (11)776

(i) Sensitivity of reported reserves in other compehensive income to interest rate movements

100 bps* Parallel 100 bps* Parallel
Increase Decrease
RM’000 RM’000
At 31 December 2019 (16,306) 16,306
At 31 December 2018 (14,005) 14,005

* bps - basis points
(e) Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss anggifrom a wide variety of causes associated
with the Bank’s processes, personnel, technology andsfreture, and from external factors other
than credit, market and liquidity risks.

Every department is responsible for understanding theabipeal risks inherent in its material
products, activities, processes and systems. They arersifye for the management of operational
risk on a day-to-day basis. The Bank has adopted the folipvetandards and management
measures in managing operational risk:-

= requirement for appropriate segregation of duties, inogdndependent authorisation of
transaction

= requirement for reconciliation and monitoring @&rtsactions

= compliance with regulatory and other legal requizais

= documentation of controls and procedures

= development of contingency plans

= training and professional development

= ethical and business standards

= risk mitigation, including insurance where applieab
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36.

Capital management

Regulatory capital

The Bank’s lead regulator, BNM, sets and monitors capitguiement for the Bank. The Bank is
required to comply with the provisions of the Basel Il andffimeworks in respect of regulatory capital
adequacy.

The Bank adopts a prudent capital management approachuceehsas adequate capital to support its
operations at all times. On top of the minimum regulatoryitedpequirements, a buffer is added on to
arrive at the Bank’s internal capital target to ensure adeygwf capital to support the current and
anticipated business growth. Internal Capital Adequacse8sment Process (“ICAAP”) is formulated to
identify the material risks in the business. The materigi areas that are taken into consideration are
credit risk, market risk, operational risk, credit congatibn risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk in
banking book, compliance risk, strategic risk a#l a&reputation risk.

Internal capital assessment is carried out to determinéetred of internal capital required by the Bank
based on the Pillar 1 and 2 requirements as well as the asseissfithe 3-year financial projection and
stress testing. Capital plan, business plan and budgeipare\eed by the Board of Directors on annual
basis. The business plan in particular would set out the Bdakding direction and business strategies
for the coming year according to the approved risk appe8tmnior Management is responsible for
ensuring a smooth development and implementation of theARZ Aolicy as well as effective systems
and processes are in place. The Bank's performance aghmgtternal capital level is reviewed on a
regular basis by the Senior Management. Should there bedhfaeeapital raising exercise, it will be
presented to the Board of Directors for approval.

The Bank undertakes stress test exercise on half yearly ttaassess the Bank’s capability to withstand
an adverse environment. The stress test will at least ctneexceptional but plausible event and the
worst case scenario for a 3-year period. The possible impaitte Bank due to occurrence of adverse
events, i.e. significant deterioration in borrowers’ dtguofile, decline in collateral value, erosion in
the Bank’s net interest margin and sizeable foreign exohdosgs will be examined. The results of the
stress test together with the proposed mitigating actidhdetabled to the Senior Management and the
Board of Directors for deliberations.

The Bank’s regulatory capital are analysed as Vaite
(a) Tier 1 Capital, which comprises the following:-

= Common Equity Tier 1 (“CET1") Capital, which includes ordily share capital, retained
earnings (net of dividends declared), statutory reserdecdimer regulatory adjustments relating
to items that are included in equity but are tréatéferently for capital adequacy purpose.

= Additional Tier 1 Capital, which consists of instrumentsatthare issued and paid-up,
subordinated to depositors and perpetual in nature (amatigsther criteria) which are not
included in CET1 Capital as well as the regulatory adjustsi@nrelation to the calculation of
Additional Tier 1 Capital.

(b) Tier 2 Capital includes collective impairment allowasc (excluding collective impairment
allowances attributable to financing classifiednapaired) and regulatory reserve.



Registration No. 201001000001 (839839 M) 106

37.

Significant changes in accounting policies
During the financial year, the Bank adopted MFRS 16
Definition of a lease

On transition to MFRS 16, the Bank elected to apply the prattexpedient to grandfather the

assessment of which transactions are leases. It appliedSMBRonly to contracts that were previously
identified as leases. Contracts that were not identifiettases under MFRS 117 and IC Interpretation
4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Leasee not reassessed. Therefore, the defir

of a lease under MFRS 16 has been applied only to contractseghinto or changed on or after 1

January 2019.

As a lessee

The Bank applied the requirements of MFRS 16 retrospegtiwaih the cumulative effect of initial
application, if any, as an adjustment to the opgb@lance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019.

At 1 January 2019, for leases that were previously claskdi operating lease under MFRS 117, lease
liabilities were measured at the present value of the reimgilease payments, discounted at the Bank's
incremental borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019. The welggnterage rate applied is 3.25%. Right-of-
use assets are measured at an amount equal to the leasty liatjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments.

The Bank used the following practical expedients when dpghyMFRS 16 to leases previously
classified as operating lease under MFRS 117:-

- applied a single discount rate to a portfolio @fdes with similar characteristics;

- applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assalddiabilities for leases with less than 12
months of lease term as at 1 January 2

- excluded initial direct costs from measuring thlghtiof-use asset at the date of initial applicgtion

- used hindsight when determining the lease term if the cohitantains options to extend or
terminate the lease.

Impacts on financial statements

Since the Bank applied the requirements of MFRS 16 retraiedewith the cumulative effect of initial
application at 1 January 2019, there are no adprsisrmade to the prior period comparatives.

The following table explains the difference between opegatease commitments disclosed applying
MFRS 117 at 31 December 2018, and lease liabilities recedriisthe statement of financial position at
1 January 2019.

RM’000
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 20ti&el®sed in the Bank’s
financial statements 9,900
Discounted using the incremental borrowing raté d&anuary 2019 9,633
Recognition exemption for short-term leases (30)
Recognition exemption for leases of low-value asset (100)
Operating lease recognised 129
Extension and termination options reasonably aettabe exercised 4,511

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 14,143
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38.

Subsequent events

The existence of a novel coronavirus was confirmed in eafl02 The virus (which was named

COVID-19 on 11 February 2020) has since spread across mditaina and beyond. The outbreak of
COVID-19 has resulted in the occurrence of a multitude ofoeisded events such as movement
restrictions and quarantine measures taken by governmeatssing disruption to businesses and
economic activities. In addition, the economic meltdowexacerbated by the significant decline in oil
prices following the failure of the Organisation of the Péum Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) and

Russia to come into consensus on the additionaluatoon cuts at their meeting in March 2020.

The Bank considers these economic events as non-adjustisgguent events. As the situation is fluid
and rapidly evolving, the Bank does not consider it pratliedo provide a quantitative estimate of the
potential impact of these economic events on the Bank. Tlpadtof these economic events on the
macroeconomic forecast will be incorporated into the BarlMFRS 9 estimates of expected credit loss
allowances in 2020.



